
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

15 March 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 25th March, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Jonathan Noble 
Vice Chairman: Councillor James Edwards 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, 

Paul Gleeson, Dr Gordon Gregory, Barrie Pierpoint and 
Felicity Ransome and Mr Alan Pickering 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 28th January 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting– for this meeting the deadline is 
5 p.m. on Wednesday 20th March 2019. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS - ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 
(Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 (A report provided by John Cornett, KPMG Director) 
 

2   QUARTER 3 RISK REPORT 2018/19 (Pages 13 - 26) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Transformation & Governance Manager) 
 

3   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19 (Pages 27 - 38) 
 

 (A report by Paul Julian, Chief Finance Officer) 
 

4   REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 39 - 78) 
 

 (A report by Paul Julian, Chief Finance Officer) 
 

5   COMBINED ASSURANCE - STATUS REPORT (Pages 79 - 102) 
 

 (A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager) 
 

6   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/19 (Pages 103 - 116) 
 

 (A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager) 
 

7   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 117 - 118) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s Work Programme) 
 

 
This meeting may be subject to being recorded. 



 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 
via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 

located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28 January 2019 

Present: Councillor Jonathan Noble (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance:  
 
Officers –  
Chief Finance Officer, Head of Internal Audit (City of Lincoln Council), Principal Auditor 
(City of Lincoln Council), Audit Director (Mazars) and External Auditor (Mazars) 
 
38   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2018 were agreed as a correct record 
by the committee and signed by the Chairman. 
 
39   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled from Councillors James Edwards, Paul Gleeson and 
Barrie Pierpoint 
 
40   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were tabled. 
 
41   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No questions were tabled. 
 
Prior to moving into part 2 of the agenda the Chairman officially welcomed the audit 
team representatives from Mazars LLP to the meeting and introduced Mr Mark Surridge 
the Director and Engagement Lead and Mr Jon Machej the Manager to the committee. 
 
42   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

 
Introducing the report Mr Surridge confirmed it was the first Audit Plan that Mazars had 
produced for the authority.  In terms of context, the underlying significant audit risks to 
be addressed through the audit work were not unusual for a local authority of Boston’s 
size and complexity.   Mr Surridge stressed he felt it important that committee recognise 
that there were no particular unusual audit risks around the Council’s financial 
statements that gave him concern.   
Mr Machej then presented the report, noting the key points in the plan for members’ 
information as follows: 

 The time line of the audit and the audit approach.  Planning work has taken place, 
the interim work would start shortly through to March, with the detailed work on 
the Final Accounts being completed in May to July with the audit opinion due to 
be issued before the end of July. 

 The areas where the auditors would seek additional assurances from the 
Council’s own experts and the service organisations the Council used. 

 The risks, in terms of planning work, which culminated in identifying particular 
risks on which further work would be needed to gain assurance -  

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 
 

 The first risk was the accounts risk  

 The second risk was around property, plant and equipment valuations  

 The third risk within the accounts for the opinion was on defined benefit pension 
liability  

 
Also, the risk of revenue recognition and risks around the original estimates and 
judgement areas were acknowledged. 
 
Members were advised that there was also a duty to issue a Value for Money 
conclusion.  A single risk in relation to VFM had been identified, in respect of the 
Council’s £20m investment in property funds.   
 
Referring to the audit fee, members were advised it had dropped from £45k to £33k.   
 
Addressing housing benefits subsidy work, members were advised there had again 
been a reduction in fees from £9,700 down to £6,600.   
 
Concluding, Mr Machej drew members’ attention to materiality, advising that the view 
given was that the Accounts had not been materially misstated, with a figure of £882k 
being set for 2018/19.  A threshold for reporting errors had been set at £26k which 
would be subject to review as the audit progressed, with lower levels for particular areas 
of focus, for example officer’s remuneration, members’ allowances and external audit 
costs, being set. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Machej for the clear presentation of the audit strategy and the 
quality of the document tabled. 
 
43   DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 2019 – 20 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the draft budget setting report for 2019/20 and the 
medium term financial strategy through to 2023/24. It was presented to committee as 
part of the consultation process in line with the committee’s role as Those Charged With 
Governance (TCWG).   
 
The focus for committee members’ work was on the preparation of the budget and the 
assumptions underpinning the figures within the draft budget.  The key points 
highlighted within the report included: 

 Members were advised that the executive summary provided the Boston Borough 
Council precept, proposing an increase of 2.99% taking Band D council tax from 
£183.60 to £189.09.  The projected savings requirements showed that for 2020 
the draft budget balanced as required by statute, with a £500k gap in 2021 rising 
towards £900k towards 2024.  However, there were a range of factors that 
remained uncertain. 

 Part of the committee’s governance role was to ensure the assumptions were 
robust. 

 Addressing business rates retention, members were reminded that Lincolnshire’s 
pilot for 100% localisation had been successful in the current year.  The 
Lincolnshire authorities had again put in a bid for 2020 but had been 

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 

 

unsuccessful which would result in a pooling arrangement being put in place, to 
retain more resources locally.   

 The assumed council tax increase going forward after 2019/20 was 2% per year 
but this could change on a year by year basis due to annual referendum limits. It 
was also stated that of the precept that Boston Borough received, over half was 
passed across to the Internal Drainage Boards.  It was further confirmed that the 
Association of Drainage Boards was lobbying the government to look at this as 
part of the upcoming Fairer Funding review. 

 Regarding New Homes Bonus, it was confirmed that the government had not 
changed the 0.4% baseline for the current year, which had resulted in the Council 
receiving £721k in 2019/20, half of which would support capital and half to 
revenue, in line with Council policy.   

 The fees and charges income budgets for the year totalled just over £4.6m and 
the projected position for the year was closely monitored through the quarter 
reporting process:  in quarters 1 and 2 of the current year there had been some 
small variations, however managers were confident that the proposed budgets 
were achievable.   

 Total income expected for the 2019/20 year would be almost £38m half of which 
related to housing benefit grant.   A subjective analysis was provided by type of 
spend of the £38m expected expenditure. 
 

 The Section 151 Officer stated that he believed that the estimated position on the 
general fund balance, which was expected to stay at £2m across the five years, 
was reasonable. 

 Regarding specific reserves, it was advised that whilst the report projected over 
£13m by the end of 2023/24, some capital expenditure would be needed during 
this time, and so it was unlikely to be that high by 2023/24. 

 The £312k savings identified for 2019/20 were £30k from ceasing the contribution 
to the insurance reserve; £238k from changes in the leisure, culture and heritage 
services; and further savings through core grants through the voluntary sector 
with relocation of the CAB and Lincolnshire CVS into the Municipal Buildings.   

 
Members’ comment and questioning followed which points made on the following items: 
 
The in-year surplus of £30k. 
Why the insurance reserve contribution was being discontinued. 
Was the recent loss of one major retailer was being taken into consideration in looking 
at business rate income. 
The capital slippage on the PRSA. 
The amount of total estimated spend on employee costs. 
Fees and charges and the proportion of gross income received from them – further 
information to be provided following the meeting 
The net cost to the Council of running the GMLC. 
 
A member voiced their pleasure at the presentation and layout of the report.  They 
stated that it was clear that the authority would be facing significant challenges moving 
forward and it was good that despite the severity of the situation, the Council was aware 
of what was happening and was taking steps to address it.  Referring to the increase in 
council tax the member stated that the Council had no choice but to implement it.  He 
quoted the £183 on a Band D property with an increase to £189 for the following year 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 
 

and said that with over 50% of the council tax precept going direct to the Drainage 
Boards, the services the Council delivered on the section of the council tax it was raising 
and keeping, were being delivered on less money than some parishes ran parish level 
services, both locally and across Lincolnshire.  He noted that members shared his view 
of the gross iniquity that IDB’s increases came out of the authority’s capped increase.   
 
44   TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 3 2018/19 

 
The Chief Finance Officer referred members to section 4 of the report relating to 
treasury management projections for the year.  He confirmed that the remaining 
property fund spend had been undertaken.  Members were advised that to date £14m of 
long term Public Works Loans Board funding had been actioned and officers continued 
to review the outlook for movements in interest rates, prior to any further borrowing 
being undertaken. 
It was confirmed that the Council had complied with both its Treasury Management 
Strategy and Prudential Indicator limits.   
Referencing the need to report changes in risk appetite to members, it was confirmed 
there had been none within the last quarter. 
 
Committee comment and questioning followed which included: 
 
A member referenced neighbouring authorities who had invested in commercial activity 
and sought the opinion of the External Auditor in respect of such action.  The Auditor 
responded stating that without doubt there was ongoing pressure on local government 
finances and a recognition that to continue to fund services, local authorities should be 
able to engage in various forms of commercial activity, working within the existing 
boundaries.  Taking such decisions were a matter for the authority, however it was 
stressed that what was really important for the auditors was that when taking decisions 
local authorities needed to be fully informed and transparent and understand the risk 
level in which they were working.  The core fundamental principles needed to support 
any form of decision making. 
A council needed to do what it had to do to support its financial resilience. 
The negative capital position to date of £318k, with the response that it represented the 
fact that the initial costs of acquiring the funds were generally above their value at that 
time, it was entirely expected,  bearing in mind the position with regard to supply and 
demand at the time of purchase. 
 
45   ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the report was the annual update of accounting 
policies following a review of the Code of Practice to ensure the Council remains 
compliant. The report set out that there were a small number of changes this year, none 
of which were expected to impact on the Council’s financial reporting. 
 
No questions were tabled by committee, members praised the production and layout of 
the report and agreed their acceptance of it. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Audit and Governance Committee unanimously agreed: 
 

Page 4



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 

 

1. Their approval of the Accounting Policies (set out in Appendix A) and that they be 
adopted for 2018/19; and 

2. To delegate final approval, prior to inclusion in the Accounts, of any necessary 
minor changes to the Section 151 Officer.  

 
46   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS REPORT 2018/19 

 
The Internal Audit Manager confirmed that the audit plan was progressing well.  At the 
end of December around 72% of the plan had been completed which was on track for 
completion at the end of the year.  Five areas of work would be reported on:  NDR key 
controls; affordable housing; council tax key controls, housing benefit key controls and 
consultancy around car parking.   All areas were high or substantial assurance.   No 
areas for improvement had been found in respect of NDR key controls or affordable 
housing.  Other significant work included review work undertaken on car parking which 
was a mixture of assurance work on income collection, banking and reconciliation with 
no areas of improvement identified in any area.  Further consultancy work was carried 
out on the current car parking arrangements with suggestions raised currently with 
management.  Work had been undertaken in respect of combined assurance work, 
looking at the different levels of assurance – management, third party and internal audit.  
A report on which would be tabled at the March meeting of the committee.  Furthermore 
the Northamptonshire failings had been noted, a health check against the areas on that 
inspection report had been carried out with a couple of areas being identified which had 
not been on the 2018 assurance map, the medium term financial strategy and scrutiny 
complaints:  it was proposed that those would be included within the 2019 map and 
audit plan. 
The draft internal audit plan had already been considered by CMT with a slight 
amendment to the 2018/19 plan with a request that the cultural review be swapped for a 
complaints review with the cultural review being completed during 2019/20.   
Ongoing auditing progress - I.T infrastructure follow up, business continuity and 
emergency planning, economic development, migration fund, town centre events and 
the digital strategy audit had also been started. 
Looking ahead two areas had been included for 2019/20 and CIPFA were also looking 
at ways of assessing financial resilience through a new financial management code and 
a financial resilience index, further information would be provided as they progressed. 
 
Member comment and questioning followed which included: 
 
A member voiced concern at people having access to systems which they should not 
have access to.   
The Chief Finance Officer stated he felt there were two important elements.  One was 
the specific requirement within the audit which resulted due to staff changing positions 
and systems not being updated:  members were assured procedures had been 
implemented to ensure that when such changes arose the systems did work. Committee 
were advised that the wider point for overall access was that once a person left, their 
access was removed to ensure they could not get into the sub-system from the point of 
leaving. A robust process was now in place for leavers to ensure they could not get in 
through the first gateway. 
Referencing car parking and income controls a member sought further elaboration on 
what had gone wrong previously and how it had been addressed moving forward.  
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed there had been a regular audit with regard to 
income controls that auditors undertook and a part of that task had been to carry out 

Page 5



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 
 

further consultancy type work (including reviewing the strategy through to the charging 
process to see what opportunity there was for further income). Currently management 
were considering that to see how they may or not be implemented, but it had been an 
independent review for a comparison against others, to see how the Council was doing. 
A member referred to housing benefit and the apparent staff shortage with a staff review 
underway, voicing concern that it was an area that could be subject to quite extensive 
fraud by unscrupulous members of the public, and asked if another person would be 
appointed.   
The Chief Finance Officer advised that there had been a vacancy after the person who 
undertook the checks was promoted, and had been picking up only some of the quality 
checks in the meantime.  Referencing fraud, committee were advised that each member 
of the team had very stringent requirements under the housing benefits regulations to 
ensure they assessed in line with regulations.    
Addressing town centre events and events management, a member referenced a report 
being agreed and asked if there was any early indication in what direction the outcomes 
were heading and asked when the report would be available. 
Mr Scott advised it was a substantial audit report which had noted a couple of items and 
would be coming to committee soon. 
The Chief Finance Officer further confirmed that as the BTAC committee had taken 
responsibility of events, the report would also be tabled through that committee as well. 
Another member asked if GDPR would be within future audit plans checking on the 
operations within the Council in compliance with GDPR requirements and stated he felt 
it maybe something that needed to be looked out from an external angle. 
The point was made that a substantive look at GDPR across the Council  would take up 
a great deal of the auditor’s time  It was noted that, since the introduction of the GDPR 
regulations in May 2018, a substantial amount of work had been carried out across the 
Council.  There may come a point at which the external auditors need to look at it, but 
officers did continue to monitor the procedures. 
The member stated all the regulations were relatively new and going forward it was 
something that needed to be looked at with an overview of the general systems. 
 
 
47   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/ 20 

 
The Internal Audit Manager presented a report setting out next year’s draft internal audit 
plan based on an internal audit risk assessment and combined assurance work.  
Strategic and operational risks were also considered along with broad risks and the 
Council’s priorities.  Appendix C provided a list of audited areas across the Council.  
The audit was broken down across areas with critical services areas which were the key 
service areas, due diligence audits included key financial systems and an annual review 
was also undertaken of ICT. 
 
No questions or comments were raised and members noted the report. 
 
48   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Committee were advised that the Certification of Grants and Returns Annual Report by 
KMPG would be tabled at the next scheduled meeting on the 25 March 2019. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 January 2019 

 

 
 

The Meeting ended at 7.45 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

        

  KPMG LLP  Tel +44 (0) 7711 869957 
  Infrastructure, Government & Healthcare   
  One Snowhill 

Snow Hill Queensway  
Birmingham B4 6GH 

  

  United Kingdom   
     

 

  

KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the 
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.   

Registered in England No OC301540 
Registered office: 15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL 
For full details of our professional regulation please refer to  
‘Regulatory Information’ under ‘About/About KPMG’ at www.kpmg.com/uk 

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential 

Private & confidential 
Paul Julian 
Chief Finance Officer & Section 151 Officer 
Boston Borough Council 
Municipal Buildings 
West Street 
Boston, 
Lincolnshire 
PE21 8QR 

08 January 2019 

 
  
  
  

Our ref KPMG/BBCBEN01 
  

Contact Andy Cardoza 
 07711 869957 
  

   

 
Dear Paul 

Boston Borough Council - Certification of claims and returns - annual report 
2017/18 

Public Sector Audit Appointments requires its external auditors to prepare an annual 
report on the claims and returns certified for each audited body. This letter is our annual 
report for the certification work we have undertaken for 2017/18. 

In 2017/18 we carried out certification work on only one claim or return, the Housing 
Benefit Subsidy claim. The certified value of the claim was £17 million, and we 
completed our work and certified the claim on 27 November 2018. 

Matters arising 

Our certification work on Housing Subsidy Benefit claim included:  

— agreeing standard rates, such as for allowances and benefit incomes, to the DWP 
Circular communicating the value of each rate for the year;  

— sample testing of benefit claims to confirm that the entitlement had been correctly 
calculated and was supported by appropriate evidence;  

— undertaking an analytical review of the claim form considering year-on-year 
variances and key ratios;  

— confirming that the subsidy claim had been prepared using the correct benefits 
system version; and  

— completing testing in relation to modified schemes payments, uncashed cheques 
and verifying the accurate completion of the claim form. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 KPM G LLP 
 Boston Borough Council - Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2017/18 
 08 January 2019 
 

 KPMG/BBCBEN01 2 

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential 
 

Our certification work identified a number of errors in the original claim. Where the error 
can be quantified by testing 100% of the population of potentially affected cases the 
claim can be amended. Where the population is too large for 100% testing to be 
practical we need to write a qualification letter to explain what we found. The errors we 
found and the way they were dealt with are set out below: 

Amendments to claim  

The cells that were amended where the original claim had been revised and where 
testing of 100% the population was carried out were in respect of Non HRA Rent 
Rebates, Rent Allowances and Modified Schemes and Uncashed cheques. The overall 
impact to the claim was a £2,683 increase in subsidy claimed.  

Qualification Letter  

We found a small number of errors in our Rent Allowances sample testing which we 
needed to report as the population were too large for 100% testing. They related to the 
following: 

- incorrect calculations of earnings; and 

- incorrect overpayment classification. 

Consequently we have made no recommendations to the Authority to improve its 
claims completion process. There were no recommendations made last year and there 
are no further matters to report to you regarding our certification work.  

Certification work fees 

Public Sector Audit Appointments set an indicative fee for our certification work in 
2017/18 of £9,767. Our actual fee was higher than the indicative fee (£11,762) which 
will be subject to PSAA approval, and this compares to the 2016/17 fee for this claim of 
£9,284. The reason for the increase is due to the additional time spent calculating the 
impact of errors within the workbooks, re-performing the 40+ workbooks and checking 
the amendments to the claim.  

Yours sincerely 

 

Andy Cardoza 
Engagement Lead

Page 10



 
 

 KPM G LLP 
 Boston Borough Council - Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2017/18 
 08 January 2019 

 

 3 
 

This report is addressed to the Council and has been prepared for the sole use of the Council. We take no 
responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties.  We draw  your 
attention to the Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies, w hich is available on Public  
Sector Audit Appointment’s w ebsite (w w w .psaa.co.uk). 

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s ow n responsibility for putting in place 
proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance w ith the law  and proper  
standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically , 
eff iciently and effectively. 

We are committed to providing you w ith a high quality service. If  you have any concerns or are dissatisf ied 
w ith any part of KPMG’s w ork, in the f irst instance you should contact John Cornett, the engagement lead 
to the Authority, w ho w ill try to resolve your complaint. If  you are dissatisf ied w ith your response please 
contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s w ork under our contract w ith Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, Andrew  Sayers, by email to andrew .sayers@kpmg.co.uk. After this, if  you are still 
dissatisf ied w ith how  your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by 
emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by w riting to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 25 MARCH 2019 

SUBJECT: QUARTER 3 RISK REPORT 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 

 

Update on risks in Quarter 3 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Committee comment on the Quarter 3 risk information if required and review plans for 
2019/20. 

 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of 
reference 

 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 

 

REPORT 

 
1. Update on risks in Quarter 3 

1.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact most 
on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan 
(www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan) – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

 
1.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 3. The impact of the Local Plan 

will be updated in Quarter 4. 
 
1.3 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix A) 

 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 

Flood risk 
Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

Local Plan 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Amber 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 
1.4 The two highest risks for Q3 are housing and budget with full details in Appendix A. 
 
 
2. Plans for review for 2019/20 

 
2.1 The strategic risks for 2019/20 will be reviewed alongside the development of the 

next Corporate Plan. 
 
2.2 The operational risks for 2019/20 are currently being reviewed by service managers 

as part of service planning for 2019/20 and will be reported in Q1 of 2019/20. 

Page 14

http://www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan


 

 

 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications specific to this report. 
 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Local Government Act 1999 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 

 

Consultation has been undertaken with Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Service 
Management Team (SMT). 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
 

Risk Q3 2018/19 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's ability 
to achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; joint 
working with LCC 
and South 
Holland on the 
Local Plan; plans 
for the Boston 
Barrier (which 
will reduce risk 
of tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; deliver 
the Local Plan; 
the risk score 
will only reduce 
when the 
Boston Barrier 
is in place 

Submission of 
the Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
20/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
6/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

P
age 17



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Local Plan 

Lack of delivery 
on the Local 
Plan will have 
an impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Local Plan 
delivery plan; 
plans for a local 
plan board to 
oversee actions 
post-adoption 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on 
delivering the 
Local Plan on 
schedule 

Adoption of the 
Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
27/6/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of housing 
delivery, across 
tenures that 
means that the 
range of 
housing needs 
that exist 
within the 
Borough 
cannot be met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence and 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 

AF 

Development of 
a new Local Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing Strategy 
Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing enabling 
and housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Submission of 
local plan.  
Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.  
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing 
delivery. 

N/A 

Red; Reviewed 
and updated by 
CMT on 
24/1/18; 
increased from 
medium to high 
risk 

P
age 18



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people and 
meet the wider 
housing needs 
of the 
community;  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

There is a risk 
that ‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered locally' 
project work 
underway with 
partners to 
ensure support 
and training is in 
place for staff 
and local people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
16/5/18 – no 
changes at this 
time – to be 
reviewed again 
post Universal 
Credit roll out 
in September 
2018 

P
age 19



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Health 

There is a risk 
that health 
issues will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect people; 
long term 
health issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Partnership 
work on the 
Boston Health & 
Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
18/4/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability 
of the town 
centre in terms 
of retail, 
housing and 
car parking will 
have an impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priority 

PP 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task and 
finish groups 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task 
and finish 
groups 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
the town 
centre 
deteriorating 
to possible 
and to take 
all available 
opportunities 
to reshape a 
vibrant town 
centre 

Green; 
Reviewed and 
updated by 
CMT on 
10/1/18; risk 
score reduced 
from 9 to 6 – 
still medium 

P
age 20



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 Population 

change 

There is a risk 
that population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
 Treat 

 Inclusive Boston 
projects – 
progress 
monitored in 
quarterly 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 2/5/18 
and 13/6/18; 
wording 
changed and 
likelihood 
increased to 3 

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the value list 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; continue 
to drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme; be 
less risk averse 
when making 
decisions about 
transformation 

Delivery of 
MTFP; quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
18/10/17; no 
changes 
recommended; 
specific wording 
added in 
relation to 
Internal 
Drainage Board 
(IDB) risk in Q4 

P
age 21



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment and 
retention project 
completed; 
succession 
planning 
ongoing; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member training 
and 
development; 
there is capacity 
in priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
01/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

4
 

Transformation 
Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme; 
review of the 
project 
management 
guidelines 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
11/07/18 – 
likelihood score 
increased to 3 

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome 
of the 
referendum 
has resulted in 
economic 
uncertainty 
and there may 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
15/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

P
age 22



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

be other 
changes 
around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, and 
the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

monitoring clarity 

O
ve

ra
ll Civil 

contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community Risk 
Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 
(LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership with 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
7/02/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

P
age 23



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal controls, 
policies and 
procedures in 
place; annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work to 
improve contract 
management 
and to update 
the contract 
register; 
Member training 
programme and 
corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 
process 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls; 
improve 
contract 
register 

Internal audit 
reporting; 
review of 
contract 
register; 
Member Code 
of Conduct to be 
finalised and 
adopted; 
procurement 
training 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
30/05/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

P
age 24



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use of 
social media; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston 
etc; work with 
the Youth 
Council 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
21/02/2018 – 
changes to 
wording only 

 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 25



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 

P
age 26



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 25 MARCH 2019 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) assesses compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance. The draft statement for 2018/19 is attached 
at Appendix A for challenge and comment. 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Audit and Governance Committee comment on the attached draft 
AGS. 
 
 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The council is required to review the effectiveness of its governance 
framework, and prepare an AGS annually. 
 
In the Constitution, it is the responsibility of the Audit & Governance 
Committee to review the AGS prior to approval and to consider whether it 
properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, taking into 
account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
the council’s framework of governance, risk management and control. 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
To propose alternative arrangements 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3



1. Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require local authorities to conduct 

at least annually a review of the effectiveness of their governance framework 
including their systems of internal control. 
 

1.2 This must be documented in an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and 
prepared in accordance with proper practices, including those set out in the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of 
Local Authority Chief Executives (Solace) guidance “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)”. 

 
1.3 Our draft AGS is attached at Appendix A for comment. 
 
1.4 The Executive Summary sets out the timeline and identifies the key 

improvement areas for the year ahead. 
 
1.5 Section 6 provides an update on progress of the key actions from last year 

and key changes and improvements that have happened since the last AGS. 
 
1.6 The final AGS must be published as part of the audited financial report for 

2018/19 in July 2019. Any comments arising from Audit & Governance 
Committee’s review will be considered and included as appropriate. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Local Government Act 1999 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

There are implications across the Council as this relates to corporate governance. 

 
CONSULTATION 
The draft AGS has been reviewed by CMT. 
 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 were used in the production of this report.  
 

Page 28



  

 

DDRRAAFFTT  AANNNNUUAALL  GGOOVVEERRNNAANNCCEE  

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  22001188//1199  

 

1. Executive Summary 

Boston Borough Council is committed to the highest standards of governance. We are 
responsible for ensuring that we have proper arrangements in place for governing the 
organisation (including a system of internal control) and for effective service delivery. 
 

Each year we are required to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which 
describes how our corporate governance arrangements have been working. To help us to 
do this, the Council's Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Audit & Governance 
Committee (AGC) undertake a review of our governance framework and the development 
of the AGS. 
 

Timeline: 
 March 2019: Initial review and challenge by CMT and AGC 
 May 2019: Draft signed off by CMT and AGC 
 July 2019: Final AGS agreed as part of the audited financial report for 2018/19 

signed by the Leader and Chief Executive 
 

Significant Governance Issues: 
Overall, we can confirm that we are satisfied that we have effective arrangements in place 
for the governance of Boston Borough Council and that we have a robust system of 
internal control which is fit for purpose. No significant gaps have been identified. 
 

Whilst we are satisfied that these generally work well, our review has identified some 
areas of work for 2019/20 as set out in the table below. 
 

Key area for 2019/20 Lead officer To be 
delivered by 

Post-election training and development for 
Members 

Michelle Sacks / 
Katharine Nundy 

October 2019 

Development of a new Corporate Plan and refresh 
of the Transformation Programme 

Katharine Nundy / 
Paul Julian 

March 2020 

Implementation of code of conduct arrangements Michelle Sacks March 2020 
 

These actions will be recorded in service plans for 2019/20 and reported back in the next 
annual review. Where issues are not significant but related actions and/or projects are 
planned, these will also be recorded in service plans and reported as usual as part of the 
quarterly monitoring arrangements. 
 

Progress made relating to the governance issues identified in last year’s AGS is set out in 
section 6. The change of the external auditor and implementation of General Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR) were successfully completed. The recommendation to 
establish a Standards Sub Committee to deal with Member Code of Conduct 
arrangements was agreed by Full Council on 21 January 2019. 
 

Councillor Mike Cooper, Leader of the Council: ________________________ 

Phil Drury, Chief Executive: ________________________ 

Signed on behalf of Boston Borough Council 

APPENDIX A 

Page 29



  

 

2. What is Corporate Governance? 

Corporate Governance is about how the Council ensures it is doing the right things, in the 
right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable 
manner.  It is made up of the systems and processes, cultures and values by which the 
Council is directed and controlled. 
 
We have adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance based on the Governance 
Framework developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (Solace) – “Delivering Good 
Governance”. This was adopted by full Council on 15 May 2017 and is available on our 
website at www.boston.gov.uk/governance. 
 

Principle A: 
Integrity & ethics 

Principle B: 
Openness & engagement 

Principle C: 
Sustainable outcomes 

How we do this: How we do this: How we do this: 

Constitution and codes of 
conduct 

Member and management 
structures in place; clear 
roles and responsibilities e.g. 
CMT, Head of Paid Service, 
Section 151 Officer, 
Monitoring Officer, AGC 

Systems and procedures e.g. 
fraud, disciplinary, non-
conformance, whistleblowing 

Communication of shared 
values 

Forward plan of key 
decisions 

Communication via bulletins, 
press releases, web and 
social media, specific 
promotional campaigns 

Publication of live and 
planned consultations and 
results and outcomes for the 
last 3 years 

Feedback encouraged and 
lessons learned shared 

Corporate Plan setting out 
our vision and corporate 
priorities 

Effective annual service 
planning arrangements in 
place with quarterly 
monitoring and reporting 

Transformation Programme 
with quarterly reporting to 
Transformation Board 

Effective contract and asset 
management arrangements 
in place 

 

Principle D: 
Interventions 

Principle E: 
Capacity 

Principle F: 
Risk & performance 

Principle G: 
Transparency 

How we do this: How we do this: How we do this: How we do this: 

Scrutiny and decision 
making 

Committee report 
template 

Systems and 
procedures e.g. 
equality, project 
management, service 
planning 

Social value in 
Contract Procedure 
Rules 

Councillor 
Development Charter 
awarded by East 
Midlands Councils 
(EMC) 

Learning and 
development plans 

Induction 

Efficient systems and 
technology 

Effective risk, 
performance and 
financial 
arrangements 

AGC, external and 
internal audit 

Compliance with 
audit, finance and 
fraud requirements 

Information 
management and 
privacy impact 
assessments 

Publication of 
transparency 
information 

Publication Scheme 

Freedom of Information 

Committee reports and 
information published 
online 

Open and 
transparent decision  
making 

Page 30

http://www.boston.gov.uk/governance


  

 

Each year we are required to assess compliance against the Framework and the Code of 
Corporate Governance in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). Once approved, this 
becomes part of the Statement of Accounts and is also published on our website as above 
for full transparency and accountability. 
 

3. The Council – how it works 

The Council’s vision is set out in the ‘Council Plan 2016/17 to 
2019/20: Boston – Open for Business’. 
 
It sets out how we will continue to seek out new ways to 
promote prosperity, make Boston borough a safe and 
pleasant place to live, sustain services and protect and 
support the most vulnerable while continuing to meet the 
challenges set by Government. 
 
This is available online at www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan  
 
Leadership and decision making 
 

 The Council is responsible for the adoption of the budget and policy framework 
 Cabinet is responsible for its implementation 
 The two Scrutiny Committees (Community & Corporate Committee and Environment & 

Performance Committee) hold Cabinet to account 
 The AGC has particular responsibility for finance and governance 
 The Chief Executive is Head of Paid Service and is responsible for all staff and for 

leading CMT 
 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for safeguarding the Council’s financial position 

and securing value for money 
 Compliance with the CIPFA (The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy) Statement on the role of the Chief Finance Officer. 
 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring legality, good governance and 

promoting high standards of conduct 
 Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to the priorities 

set out in the Corporate Plan and service plans 
 There is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired 

outcomes for service users and the local community 
 Decision making is sound and inclusive, with decisions published on the Council’s 

website 

 
Risk management and assurance 
 

 Strategic, operational and project risks are identified, monitored and reported 
 Internal audit reports and the Assurance Statement are presented to AGC and 

published 
 External audit reports and Use of Resources judgement also presented to AGC and 

published 
 Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) report published annually and included in 

quarterly reporting 
 External accreditation e.g. Member Development Charter 

 

Page 31

http://www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan


  

 

4. Outcomes and value for money 

 
Outcomes: 
 
Areas of success / improvement in Quarter 3 2018/19 
 

 Planning performance continues to be on or better than target. The Government tracks 
planning performance over a cumulative 2 year period. Boston’s performance is 
currently at 72.5% for majors (against a minimum standard of 60%) and 73.78% for 
minors and others (against a minimum standard of 70%). 

 44 businesses were visited to support business growth (compared to a target of 37). 
 368 housing completions compared to a target of233. 
 The number of non-local authority owned empty properties returned into occupation is 

better than target (actual 63 against a target of 45). 
 Benefit and Council Tax Support (CTS) processing times are consistently better than 

target. 
 98.68% of food businesses are ‘broadly compliant’ with hygiene legislation (i.e. rated 3, 

4 or 5) against a target of 95%. 
 Swim sessions at Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre (GMLC) are better than target (actual 

127,759 against a target of 124,000). 
 Car parking permit income is better than budget (£17,359 compared to a target of 

£13,870) 
 Average time taken to respond to information requests (Freedom of Information (FOI) 

and Environmental Information Regulations (EIR)) is better than target with an average 
of 6 working days against the statutory deadline of 20 working days. This is the same 
for Subject Access requests with an average response time of 25 days against the 
statutory deadline of one calendar month. 

 Sickness absence is on or better than target. 
 The percentage of abandoned calls to switchboard was below target (6.30% compared 

to 10%) 

 
Areas of concern / watching brief in Quarter 3 2018/19 
 
Housing standards 
A two-year project is underway to deliver improved housing standards in the Borough. 
Housing pressures are acute with the private rented sector now constituting almost 30% of 
the housing stock in the area. The latest housing stock modelling indicates that over 1,500 
dwellings in the private rented sector have category 1 HHSRS hazards. 
 
A programme of inspection is underway and there is a target for 200 homes to have 
improved housing standards by March 2020. The total delivered by the end of Q3 2018/19 
is 38 homes, which reflects the time it takes for results to feed through following informal 
advice or notice. Recruitment to two vacant Housing Standards Officer posts is due to 
complete by the end of 2018/19. 
 
Rough sleepers 
The official Rough Sleeper count submitted in 2018 was 22. This is an increase from 5 in 
2016 and 15 in 2017. This equates to 7.77 rough sleepers per 10,000 households which 
puts Boston 7th highest in these terms out of 326 districts in England. Anecdotally, partner 
organisations put the figure as high as 40 people who rough sleep on a regular basis. 
 

Page 32



  

 

On behalf of all Lincolnshire Local Authorities, Boston Borough Council has secured a 
grant of £234,235 from the Controlling Migration Fund to commission a Lincolnshire wide 
Rough Sleeper Reconnection project.  In addition, BBC has submitted a Boston only bid 
for £145,000 to the Rough Sleeper Initiative fund for 2019/20 and will be submitting a 
further bid at the end of March 2019 to the Rapid Rehousing Pathway fund aimed at 
providing an integrated, intensive support programme to help rough sleepers off the street 
and to prevent those at risk of rough sleeping becoming street homeless. 
 
Waste Strategy 
Household waste reused, recycled and composted is worse than target at 44.15% against a 
target of 45.75% which was the actual at the same time last year. Residual household waste 
per household is also worse than target at 404kg compared to the actual at the same time last 
year of 383kg. This reflects the regional and national trend and is being addressed by the 
Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (LWP) who are developing the Waste Strategy for 
Lincolnshire. 
 
Fly tipping and environmental crime enforcement 
 

 
 
The number of fly tipping incidents continues to increase. This may be partly due to 
increased reporting and proactive collections but it also reflects a national trend of 
increasing incidents.  
 
A total of 1,253 fixed penalty notices have been issued since the service started in April 
2017 to the end of Q3 in 2018/19. 
 
Retail voids 
The current empty void position across the main retail areas of the town (West Street, 
Town Centre) is 25. This figure has been consistent over the past 12 months, though it has 
not always been the same voids. The figure for the wider economic area is 75 which 
represents 10% of the overall retail footprint. 
 

Page 33



  

 

Business rates 
 

Three major businesses have ceased trading during 2018/19: 
 

Business Rateable Value Gross Rates 

Fogarty Limited 802,790 £404,208 

Blue Inc (Officers Club) 65,000 £32,760 

Holdfast Haulage 100,000 £50,400 

 

We are aware of three more major businesses which are currently at risk with a total 
rateable value of £737,750 and total Gross Rate of £357,729. 
 

The current amount of business rates outstanding for all years (excluding 2018/19) is 
£322,000 
 
During 2018/19, to date we have written off £82,461 in respect of rates outstanding for all 
years including 2018/19. There is an additional £131,255 (over 7 x accounts) of Business 
Rates Bad debt request to write off included in the upcoming Q3 Financial Performance 
Report. 
 

Markets occupancy 
A new measure of market occupancy has been introduced in 2018/19 and shows a decline 
in occupancy to date this financial year. We will be able to compare trends when we have 
more data. 
 

Average occupancy figures: 

Date Wednesday Market Bargate Green Saturday Market 

Oct-18 41 10 28 

Nov-18 36 9 33 

Dec-18 35 10 29 

Jan-19 33 8 26 

Feb-19 34 8.5 25 

 

The decline of street markets countrywide is linked to broader issues of changes in 
retailing; and in particular, the changing nature of the ‘high street’. As a nation, we are 
moving towards online shopping on several levels. Busy lifestyles mean we tend to shop in 
a one-stop shop; i.e. a large Supermarket where you can get everything you need in your 
weekly shop in one hit, 24 hours a day and even this can be delivered to your door. People 
no longer have the time to walk round the Market collecting their wares and working hours 
means convenience is coming first. But people are keen to try and there is an argument to 
say that markets could play an important role in supporting new business creation through 
providing low cost entry points to retail trading and create jobs. 
 
The Market provides a strong economy pull for the town, bringing visitors from away into 
the Town. Recent surveys through the Task and Finish Survey show the local businesses 
support the Market and do not want to lose it. 
 

Summary of strategic risks – separate agenda item at AGC 

 

Page 34



  

 

Value for money (VFM): 

The latest Annual Audit Letter was reported to AGC in November 2018. The Council’s 
external auditors issued an unqualified opinion on the audit of the Council’s 2017/18 
financial statements. The auditors also issued an unqualified conclusion on the Council’s 
arrangements to secure value for money for 2017/18. This means they are satisfied that 
during the year the Council had appropriate arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. To arrive at their conclusion the 
auditors looked at the Council’s arrangements to make informed decision making, 
sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties. They did not 
identify any significant matters which prevented them from giving an unqualified VFM 
conclusion. 

 

5. How do we know our arrangements are working? 

 
 

The Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 was reported to AGC in January 2019. The summary 
of our overall assurance status shows that 91% of our critical services are green (up from 
88% in the previous year), 9% amber and 0% red. 

Combined assurance report from internal audit – separate agenda item at AGC 

 

Page 35



  

 

The following assurance is in place: 
 
Compliance with: 

 CIPFA codes and guidance capital 
finance, treasury management and 
management of reserves 

 CIPFA Statement on the role of the 
Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (CIPFA 2015) 

 CIPFA Statement on the Role of the 
Head of Internal Audit (2010) 

 Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting 

 Code of practice Managing Risk of 
Fraud & Corruption (CIPFA 2014) 

 Data Protection Act 2018 
 Financial statements prepared in 

line with CIPFA guidance and best 
practice 

 Internal Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) 

 Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 

 

Roles and responsibilities: 
 Annual Audit Letter - audit opinion 

and value for money conclusion 
 Audit & Governance Committee - 

terms of reference and annual 
review of effectiveness 

 Combined assurance report; 
management assurance 

 Corporate Management Team 
 Effective finance team 
 External Audit 
 Head of Paid Service 
 Internal Audit 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Scrutiny Committees and call-in 
 Section 151 Officer 
 VFM conclusion 

 
Policies and procedures 

 Advisory notices 
 Annual and quarterly reporting and 

service planning 
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
 Asset Management Plan 
 Boston Borough Council website 
 Budget consultation 
 Bulletin, press releases, promotional 

campaigns 
 Business cases / options appraisals 
 Capital programme 
 Committee reports online 
 Constitution and codes of conduct 
 Consultation 
 Corporate Plan – vision and 

priorities 
 Effective working relationships 
 Efficient systems and technology 
 Equality Analysis 
 Financial Regulations and Contract 

Procedure Rules 
 Forward Plan of key decisions 

 Freedom of Information 
 Information management and IT 
 Learning and development plans 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy, 

budget guidance and protocols 
 Member Development Charter 
 Open and transparent decision 

making 
 Parish council partnership project 
 People policies and recruitment 
 Performance and risk management 
 Privacy notices and assessments 
 Publication Scheme and 

transparency data published 
 Record of Processing Activity (RoPA) 
 Shared values 
 Social value in Contract Procedure 

Rules 
 Transformation Programme 
 Website and social media 
 Whistleblowing Policy 

  

Page 36



  

 

6. Looking back on 2017/18 

Action Lead 
officer 

Progress 

Change of external 
auditor 

Paul 
Julian 

Mazars presented their first External Audit Plan to AGC in 
January 2019. There are no identified issues at this time. 

Implementation of 
General Data 
Protection 
Regulations (GDPR) 

Michelle 
Sacks 

A Data Protection Officer (DPO) has been appointed. A 
Record of Processing Activity (RoPA) has been developed 
for all service areas. Privacy notices are in place and 
published. Privacy impact assessments are to be 
completed in future for any major process changes. Work 
continues with the Information Management Group to 
embed privacy considerations into all service areas. 

Review of codes of 
conduct for officers 
and members 

Michelle 
Sacks 

The recommendation to establish a Standards Sub 
Committee to deal with Member Code of Conduct 
arrangements was agreed by Full Council on 21 
January 2019. This was following recommendations 
made by the Code of Conduct Working Group and 
AGC. 

 
Other key changes and improvements that have happened since the last AGS: 
 

 The Annual Fraud Performance Report and policy updates were presented to AGC in 
May 2018 including the Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy and the Prosecutions and 
Sanctions Policy 

 
 The Annual Treasury Management Report was also presented to AGC in May 2018 

 
 CMT completed their detailed review of all of the strategic risks in 2018/19. The 

strategic risks for 2019/20 will be reviewed alongside the development of the new 
Corporate Plan. 

 
 As at the end of December 2018, 72% of the internal audit plan had been delivered 

against the target of 78%.  

 

 AGC agreed the annual update to the accounting policies in January 2019. 
 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 25 MARCH 2019 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE’S TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 

This report updates members on the publication of revised CIPFA guidance 
for Audit Committees, and provides suggested amendments to the current 
Terms of Reference (ToR) to enable the Committee to reflect both the 
guidance and best practice. It also proposes an amendment following the 
Council’s approval to set up a Standards Sub-Committee. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Audit and Governance Committee reviews the proposed 
amendments to its ToR, and recommends their approval to Council. 
 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To ensure that the Committee’s ToR are up to date, in line with guidance and 
best practice.  
 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

Not to receive an update 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 This Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToR) set out its remit and the 
breadth of areas it should consider when undertaking its work. As the 
Committee charged with governance, it is important that the ToR are 
comprehensive and align with best practice. 

1.2 CIPFA recently published a document entitled Audit Committees: 
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition), which 
facilitated a review, by Internal Audit, of this Committee’s ToR. 

1.3 The guidance includes updates to regulation and statutory guidance, 
external auditor appointment, and ethical standards for auditors. 

1.4 In addition, the Council’s decision to set up a Standards Sub-Committee, 
to deal with Code of Conduct matters, is being incorporated into the 
revised ToR. 

 

2. Commentary on the guidance, and proposed changes to this 
Committee’s ToR 

 

2.1 Audit Committees are a key element of corporate governance. They 
provide a high-level focus on assurance and an organisation’s 
arrangements for governance, managing risk, maintaining an effective 
control environment, and reporting on financial and non-financial 
performance. They play an important role supporting councils. 

2.2 The guidance updates the core functions of an Audit Committee in 
relation to governance, risk management, internal control and audit. The 
updates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework and associated 
guidance have also been considered for their impact on the work of the 
audit committee.  

2.3 There are amendments proposed to the core functions of the Committee 
in relation to external audit, reflecting the new arrangements for auditor 
appointment and new guidance on ethical standards for auditors issued 
by the Financial Reporting Council. The Audit Committee’s role in 
relation to counter-fraud has also been updated to reflect the Code of 
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption.  

2.4 Following the recent Council approval to the setting up of a Standards 
Sub-Committee, the ToR have been revised to recognise that decision.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



3. Conclusion 
 

3.1 As the body “charged with governance” for the Council, this Committee 
plays a significant role in overseeing the way in which governance is 
managed. The review of its ToR, following the publication of revised 
guidance by CIPFA and the decision to set up a Standards Sub-
Committee, helps show that the Committee is serious about its 
responsibilities. 

3.2 The Committee is asked to review the proposed ToR and then 
recommend it to full Council for adoption, noting that, as previously, the 
ToR extends past the guidance in a number of areas, demonstrating the 
importance that the Council places upon it and the way that best practice 
is incorporated into the Committee’s working. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Although legislation does not require audit committees, a council is required 
“to ensure that its financial management is adequate and effective and that it 
has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise 
of its functions”. Further, section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
requires the council to “make arrangements for the proper administration of its 
financial affairs”. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
Not applicable 
 

APPENDICES 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

Appendix A 
 
 
Appendix B 
 
 
Appendix B (1) 
 
 
Appendix B (2) 

Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference 
comparison 
 
Proposed revised Terms of Reference (with 
annotations of changes to the current ToR) 
 
Proposed Terms of Reference for a Standards Sub-
Committee 
 
Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations 
under the Localism Act 2011 
 

 
 
 

Page 41



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 
Edition) – CIPFA 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee – 10 December 2018 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

No previous reports regarding the revised guidance have been presented to 
the Committee. 

 

Page 42



Appendix A 

Boston Borough Council (BBC) – Audit and Governance Committee  
Terms Of Reference (ToR) comparison to CIPFA guidance 

   

Governance   

The terms of reference should 
set out the committee’s position 
in the governance structure of the 
authority. 
 

  

Updated CIPFA guidance 
(Audit Committee ToR)  
 

Current BBC (nearest) section Comments / 
suggested changes 

Statement of purpose   

1 Our audit committee is a key 
component of [name of 
authority]’s corporate 
governance. 

1. Our audit and governance 
committee is a key component of 
Boston’s corporate governance.  

No changes 
suggested 

It provides an independent and 
high-level focus on the audit, 
assurance and reporting 
arrangements that underpin good 
governance and financial 
standards. 

1 It provides an independent and 
high-level focus on the audit, 
assurance and reporting 
arrangements that underpin 
good governance and financial 
standards. 

No changes 
suggested 

2 The purpose of our audit 
committee is to provide 
independent assurance to the 
members [or identify others 
charged with governance in your 
authority] of the adequacy of the 
risk management framework and 
the internal control environment. 
It provides independent review of 
[name of authority]’s governance, 
risk management and control 
frameworks and oversees the 
financial reporting and annual 
governance processes. It 
oversees internal audit and 
external audit, helping to ensure 
efficient and effective assurance 
arrangements are in place. 

2. The purpose of our audit and 
governance committee is to 
provide independent assurance 
to the members of the adequacy 
of the risk management 
framework and the internal 
control environment. It provides 
independent review of Boston’s 
governance, risk management 
and control frameworks and 
oversees the financial reporting 
and annual governance 
processes. It oversees internal 
audit and external audit, helping 
to ensure efficient and effective 
assurance arrangements are in 
place. 
 
 

No changes 
suggested  

Governance, risk and control   

3 To review the council’s 
corporate governance 
arrangements against the good 
governance framework, including 
the ethical framework and 
consider the local code of 
governance. 

3. To review the council’s 
corporate governance 
arrangements against the good 
governance framework and 
consider annual governance 
reports and assurances 
 
 

Amend to include 
more emphasis on the 
ethical framework and 
reference to the local 
Code 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



4 To review the AGS prior to 
approval and consider whether it 
properly reflects the risk 
environment and supporting 
assurances, taking into account 
internal audit’s opinion on the 
overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s 
framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 

4. To review the Annual 
Governance Statement prior to 
approval and consider whether it 
properly reflects the risk 
environment and supporting 
assurances, taking into account 
internal audit’s opinion on the 
overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s 
framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 

No changes 
suggested 
 
 

5 To consider the council’s 
arrangements to secure value for 
money and review assurances 
and assessments on the 
effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 

5. To consider the council’s 
arrangements to secure value for 
money and review assurances 
and assessments on the 
effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 

No changes 
suggested 

To consider the council’s 
framework of assurance and 
ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities 
of the council. 

6 To consider the council’s 
framework of assurance and 
ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities 
of the council. 

No changes 
suggested  

7 To monitor the effective 
development and operation of 
risk management in the council. 

7. To monitor the effective 
development and operation of 
risk management in the council. 

No changes 
suggested  

8 To monitor progress in 
addressing risk-related issues 
reported to the committee. 

8.To monitor progress in 
addressing risk-related issues 
reported to the committee 

No changes 
suggested  

9 To consider reports on the 
effectiveness of internal controls 
and monitor the implementation 
of agreed actions. 

9.To consider reports on the 
effectiveness of internal controls 
and monitor the implementation 
of agreed actions 

No changes 
suggested 
 

10 To review the assessment of 
fraud risks and potential harm to 
the council from fraud and 
corruption. 

10.To review the assessment of 
fraud risks and potential harm to 
the council from fraud and 
corruption 

No changes 
suggested  

11 To monitor the counter-fraud 
strategy, actions and resources. 

11 To monitor the counter-fraud 
strategy, actions and resources. 

No changes 
suggested  
 

12 To review the governance and 
assurance arrangements for 
significant partnerships or 
collaborations. 
 

 Add new section to 
include reference to 
significant 
partnerships or 
collaborations 
 
(already covered 
within meeting 
agendas to an extent 
so little/no extra work) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 12.To maintain an overview of 
the Council’s contract procedure 
rules and financial regulations 
and recommend changes to 
Cabinet or Council 26 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain  

 13.To review any issue referred 
to it by the Council, Cabinet, 
Scrutiny Committee, Director, 
Monitoring Officer or the Chief 
Executive. 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 14 To consider the Council’s 
compliance with its own and 
other applicable published 
standards and controls. 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 15 To review and develop the 
Council’s Treasury Management 
and Investment Strategy before 
recommendation to Council. 

CIPFA optional wider 
Audit Committee roles 
- retain 
 

 16 To monitor compliance and 
performance of the Council’s 
Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategy on a regular 
basis. 

CIPFA optional wider 
Audit Committee roles 
- retain  

 17 To meet privately with the 
Audit Manager/ External Auditor 
where required  
 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but part 
of good practice 
guidance, so retain 

Internal audit   

13 To approve the internal audit 
charter. 

18 To approve the internal audit 
charter. 

No changes 
suggested   

14 To review proposals made in 
relation to the appointment of 
external providers of internal 
audit services and to make 
recommendations. 

19 To review proposals made in 
relation to the appointment of 
external providers of internal 
audit services and to make 
recommendations. 

No changes 
suggested 

15 To approve the risk-based 
internal audit plan, including 
internal audit’s resource 
requirements, the approach to 
using other sources of assurance 
and any work required to place 
reliance upon those other 
sources. 

20 To approve the risk-based 
internal audit plan, including 
internal audit’s resource 
requirements, the approach to 
using other sources of 
assurance and any work 
required to place reliance upon 
those other sources. 

No changes 
suggested 

16. To approve significant interim 
changes to the risk-based 
internal audit plan and resource 
requirements. 

21 To approve significant interim 
changes to the risk-based 
internal audit plan and resource 
requirements. 

No changes 
suggested 

17 To make appropriate 
enquiries of both management 
and the head of internal audit to 
determine if there are any 
inappropriate scope or resource 
limitations. 

22 To make appropriate 
enquiries of both management 
and the head of internal audit to 
determine if there are any 
inappropriate scope or resource 
limitations 
 

No changes 
suggested 

Page 45



18 To consider any impairments 
to independence or objectivity 
arising from additional roles or 
responsibilities outside of internal 
auditing of the head of internal 
audit. To approve and 
periodically review safeguards to 
limit such impairments. 

 Add new section to 
include reference to 
impairments to 
independence or 
objectivity 
 
 

19 To consider reports from the 
head of internal audit on internal 
audit’s performance during the 
year, including the performance 
of external providers of internal 
audit services. These will include: 

23 To consider reports from the 
head of internal audit on internal 
audit’s performance during the 
year, including the performance 
of external providers of internal 
audit services. These will 
include: 

No changes 
suggested 
 
 
 
 

a) updates on the work of internal 
audit including key findings, 
issues of concern and action in 
hand as a result of internal audit 
work 

a) Updates on the work of 
internal audit including key 
findings, issues of concern and 
actions / recommendations in 
hand as a result of internal audit 
work 

No changes 
suggested 

b) regular reports on the results 
of the QAIP 

b) Regular reports on the results 
of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme.  

No changes 
suggested 

c) reports on instances where the 
internal audit function does not 
conform to the PSIAS and LGAN, 
considering whether the non-
conformance is significant 
enough that it must be included 
in the AGS. 

c) Reports on instances where 
the internal audit function does 
not conform to the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and 
Local Government Application 
Note, considering whether the 
non-conformance is significant 
enough that it must be included 
in the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

No changes 
suggested 

20 To consider the head of 
internal audit’s annual report: 

24. To consider the head of 
internal audit’s annual report:  

No changes 
suggested 

a) The statement of the level of 
conformance with the PSIAS and 
LGAN and the results of the 
QAIP that support the statement 
– these will indicate the reliability 
of the conclusions of internal 
audit. 

a) The statement of the level of 
conformance with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards 
and Local Government 
Application Note and the results 
of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme that 
supports the statement – these 
will indicate the reliability of the 
conclusions of internal audit.  

No changes 
suggested 

b) The opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of 
the council’s framework of 
governance, risk management 
and control together with the 
summary of the work supporting 
the opinion – these will assist the 
committee in reviewing the AGS.  

b) The opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of 
the council’s framework of 
governance, risk management 
and control together with the 
summary of the work supporting 
the opinion – these will assist the 
committee in reviewing the AGS.  

No changes 
suggested 

Page 46



 

21 To consider summaries of 
specific internal audit reports as 
requested. 

25 To consider summaries of 
specific internal audit reports as 
requested.  

No changes 
suggested 

22 To receive reports outlining 
the action taken where the head 
of internal audit has concluded 
that management has accepted a 
level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the authority or 
there are concerns about 
progress with the implementation 
of agreed actions. 

26 To receive reports outlining 
the action taken where the head 
of internal audit has concluded 
that management has accepted 
a level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the authority or 
there are concerns about 
progress with the implementation 
of agreed actions.  

No changes 
suggested 

23 To contribute to the QAIP and 
in particular, to the external 
quality assessment of internal 
audit that takes place at least 
once every five years. 

27 To contribute to the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement 
Programme and in particular, to 
the external quality assessment 
of internal audit that takes place 
at least once every five years. 

No changes 
suggested 

24 To consider a report on the 
effectiveness of internal audit to 
support the AGS, where required 
to do so by the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations (see Appendix 
A). 

28 To consider a report on the 
effectiveness of internal audit to 
support the Annual Governance 
Statement, where required to do 
so by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations. 

No changes 
suggested 

25 To provide free and unfettered 
access to the audit committee 
chair for the head of internal 
audit, including the opportunity 
for a private meeting with the 
committee. 

 Amend to include 
access to the audit 
committee chair 
 

 29 To support the development 
of effective communication with 
the head of internal audit.  
 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

External audit   

26 To support the independence 
of external audit through 
consideration of the external 
auditor’s annual assessment of 
its independence and review of 
any issues raised by PSAA or the 
authority’s auditor panel as 
appropriate. 
 

 Amend to include 
supporting the 
independence of 
external audit 
 

27 To consider the external 
auditor’s annual letter, relevant 
reports and the report to those 
charged with governance. 

30 To consider the external 
auditor’s annual letter, relevant 
reports, and the report to those 
charged with governance 
 

No changes 
suggested 

28 To consider specific reports 
as agreed with the external 
auditor. 

31 To consider specific reports 
as agreed with the external 
auditor 
 

No changes 
suggested 
 

Page 47



29 To comment on the scope and 
depth of external audit work and 
to ensure it gives value for 
money. 

32 To comment on the scope 
and depth of external audit work 
and to ensure it gives value for 
money and to advise/liaise as 
required over the appointment of 
the Council’s external auditor. 

No changes 
suggested  
 

30 To commission work from 
internal and external audit. 

33 To commission work from 
internal and external audit, 
having taken into account the 
cost and proportionality of so 
doing and the budget for such 
work. 

No changes 
suggested 
 
 
 
 

31 To advise and recommend on 
the effectiveness of relationships 
between external and internal 
audit and other inspection 
agencies or relevant bodies. 

34 To advise and recommend on 
the effectiveness of relationships 
between external and internal 
audit and other inspection 
agencies or relevant bodies  

No changes 
suggested 

Financial reporting   

32 To review the annual 
statement of accounts. 
Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies 
have been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising from 
the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought 
to the attention of the council. 

35 To review and approve the 
annual statement of accounts. 
Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies 
have been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising from 
the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought 
to the attention of the council. 

No changes 
suggested 

33 To consider the external 
auditor’s report to those charged 
with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the 
accounts. 

36 To consider the external 
auditor’s report to those charged 
with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the 
accounts. 

No changes 
suggested 

Accountability arrangements   

34 To report to those charged 
with governance on the 
committee’s findings, conclusions 
and recommendations 
concerning the adequacy and 
effectiveness of their 
governance, risk management 
and internal control frameworks, 
financial reporting arrangements, 
and internal and external audit 
functions. 

37 To report to those charged 
with governance on the 
committee’s findings, 
conclusions and 
recommendations concerning 
the adequacy and effectiveness 
of their governance, risk 
management and internal control 
frameworks; financial reporting 
arrangements, and internal and 
external audit functions. 

No changes 
suggested 

35 To report to full council on a 
regular basis on the committee’s 
performance in relation to the 
terms of reference and the 
effectiveness of the committee in 
meeting its purpose. 

38 To report to full council on a 
regular basis on the committee’s 
performance in relation to the 
terms of reference and the 
effectiveness of the committee in 
meeting its purpose. 

No changes 
suggested 

36 To publish an annual report 
on the work of the committee. 

 Amend to include the 
publication of an 
annual report 
 

Page 48



Governance    

 39 To advise on appropriate 
strategies and action to ensure 
the Council promotes and 
maintains high standards of 
conduct.  

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 40 To recommend to the Council 
the appointment of one or more 
Independent Persons and to 
determine the remuneration of 
an Independent Person. 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 41 To monitor the operation of 
the Council’s Code of Conduct 
and to annually review the 
effectiveness of standards 
procedures and policies and 
make proposals for updating 
these as appropriate.  

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 42 To advise on or arrange for 
the training of Members and or 
co-opted members of the 
Council on matters relating to the 
Code of Conduct.  

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 43 To conduct any hearings 
relevant to the discharge of the 
committee’s functions, and in 
relation to any such hearings, to 
establish one or more sub-
committees consisting of 
Members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 44 To receive reports on 
allegations of breach of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, 
including matters determined by 
the Chief Executive or 
Monitoring Officer.  

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 45 To receive reports on 
Member dispensations granted 
by the Monitoring Officer.  
 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

Membership    

 46 The Committee shall have 
political balance and have a 
Membership of 9 Councillors and 
1 Non Elected representative 
(non-Councillor). Members of the 
committee should demonstrate 
they hold the necessary skills 
and knowledge to ensure the 
Committee can govern 
effectively.  
 
 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

Page 49



 47 The Chairman and Vice-
Chairman shall be appointed by 
the Council. The Chairman shall 
be a member of the Council 
serving on the Audit and 
Governance Committee but not 
a member of the Cabinet.  
 

Not in the standard 
CIPFA ToR, but 
considered good 
practice, so retain 

 

Page 50



Audit and Governance Committee - (9 Members + 1 Non-elected Member) 
 

Terms of Reference 

 
Statement of purpose 
 
1. Our audit and governance committee is a key component of Boston’s 

corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the 
audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance 
and financial standards. 

 
2. The purpose of our audit and governance committee is to provide 

independent assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the internal control environment. It provides 
independent review of Boston’s governance, risk management and control 
frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual governance 
processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure 
efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

 
Governance, risk and control 
 
3. To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 

governance framework, and consider annual governance reports and 
assurances including the ethical framework and consider the local code of 
governance. 

 
4. To review the Annual Governance Statement prior to approval and consider 

whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 
taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control. 

 
5. To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
6. To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it 

adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the council. 
 
7. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in 

the council. 
 
8. To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 

committee. 
 
9. To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 

implementation of agreed actions. 
 
10. To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council 

from fraud and corruption. 
 

APPENDIX B 

Page 51



11. To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources. 
 
12.  To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant 

partnerships or collaborations. 
 
123. To maintain an overview of the Council’s contract procedure rules and 

financial regulations and recommend changes to Cabinet or Council  
 
134. To review any issue referred to it by the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny 

Committee, Director, Monitoring Officer or the Chief Executive.  
 
145. To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other applicable 

published standards and controls.  
 
156.  To review and develop the Council’s Treasury Management and Investment 

Strategy before recommendation to Council.  
 
167. To monitor compliance and performance of the Council’s Treasury 

Management and Investment Strategy on a regular basis. 
 
178. To meet privately with the Audit Manager/External Auditor where required 
 
Internal audit 
 
189. To approve the internal audit charter. 
 
1920.  To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers 

of internal audit services and to make recommendations. 
 
201.  To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s 

resource requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and 
any work required to place reliance upon those other sources. 

 
212.  To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan 

and resource requirements. 
 
223. To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal 

audit to determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations. 
 
24. To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from 

additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of 
internal audit.  

 
235.  To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s 

performance during the year, including the performance of external providers 
of internal audit services. These will include: 

 
a)  Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 

concern and actions/recommendations in hand as a result of internal 
audit work. 

Page 52



 
b)  Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme. 
 
c)  Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not 

conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local 
Government Application Note, considering whether the non-
conformance is significant enough that it must be included in the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
246.  To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report: 
 

a)  The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and 
the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that 
supports the statement – these will indicate the reliability of the 
conclusions of internal audit. 

 
b)  The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control together with 
the summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the 
committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
257. To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 
 
268. To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 

has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 
unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 
implementation of agreed actions. 

 
279.  To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 

particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 
at least once every five years. 

 
2830.  To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the 

Annual Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations. 

 
31. To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the 

head of internal audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the 
committee. 

 
329.  To support the development of effective communication with the head of 

internal audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



External audit 
 
 
33. To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the 

external auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any 
issues raised by PSAA. 

 
304. To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the 

report to those charged with governance. 
 
315.  To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor. 
 
326.  To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money and to advise/liaise as required over the appointment of 
the Council’s external auditor. 

 
337.  To commission work from internal and external audit, having taken into 

account the cost and proportionality of so doing and the budget for such work. 
 
348.  To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 

external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies  
 
Financial reporting 
 
359.  To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to 

consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 
whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the 
audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council. 

 
3640.  To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 
 
Accountability arrangements 
 
3741.  To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, 

conclusions and recommendations concerning the adequacy and 
effectiveness of their governance, risk management and internal control 
frameworks; financial reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit 
functions. 

 
3842.  To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 

relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 
meeting its purpose. 

 
43. To publish an annual report on the work of the committee. 
 
Governance  
 
3944. To advise on appropriate strategies and action to ensure the Council 

promotes and maintains high standards of conduct.  

Page 54



 
405.  To recommend to the Council the appointment of one or more Independent 

Persons and to determine the remuneration of an Independent Person.  
 
416.  To monitor the operation of the Council’s Code of Conduct and to annually 

review the effectiveness of standards procedures and policies and make 
proposals for updating these as appropriate.  

 
42.  To advise on or arrange for the training of Members and or co-opted members 

of the Council on matters relating to the Code of Conduct.  
 
43.  To conduct any hearings relevant to the discharge of the committee’s 

functions, and in relation to any such hearings, to establish one or more sub-
committees consisting of Members of the Audit and Governance Committee.  

 
44.  To receive reports on allegations of breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct, 

including matters determined by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.  
 
45.  To receive reports on Member dispensations granted by the Monitoring 

Officer.  
 
See also Appendix “Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under the 
Localism Act 2011”  
 
Consideration of Code of Conduct issues and dealing with standards 
allegations under the Localism Act 2011 have been delegated to the Standards 
Sub-Committee.  Its Terms of Reference, and arrangements for dealing with 
such allegations, are set out in the separate documents Appendices 1 and 2.  
 
Membership  
 
467.  The Committee shall have political balance and have a Membership of 9 

Councillors and 1 Non Elected representative (non-Councillor). Members of 
the committee should demonstrate they hold the necessary skills and 
knowledge to ensure the Committee can govern effectively.  

 
478. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the Council. The 

Chairman shall be a member of the Council serving on the Audit and 
Governance Committee but not a member of the Cabinet.  

 
489. A Non Elected representative (non-Councillor) appointment shall coincide with 

the term of 4 year political appointment. 
 
Quorum 
 
4950. The minimum number of members to transact any business of the full 

Committee shall be 5 and for the Hearings Panel shall be 3. 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
Procedures, protocol and public speaking 
 
501. The Chairman shall be responsible for maintaining order and the effective 

conduct of business. 
 
512. The committee should meet 4-6 times a year and report directly to the Council 

with the ability to refer specific issues to the Cabinet or Scrutiny Committee, 
as appropriate. 

 
523. Public speaking will be allowed in accordance with the constitution Standing 

orders and Rights of the Public at Council meetings. 
 
Voting 
 
534. Voting shall be by a simple majority on a show of hands. 
 
545. Any voting members may request that their votes be recorded. 
 
556. In the event of any equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a second or 

casting vote. 
 
 Minutes 
 
567. Due to the infrequency of meetings unconfirmed minutes of Audit Committee 

meetings will be returned to full Council by the Chairman to be received and 
confirmed at full Council so that any recommendations can be received in a 
timely manner. 

 

  

Page 56



APPENDIX 
Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under 
the Localism Act 2011 

 
1 Context 

 
These “Arrangements” set out how you may make a complaint that an elected 
or co-opted member of this authority or of a parish council within its area has 
failed to comply with the authority’s Code of Conduct, and sets out how the 
authority will deal with allegations of a failure to comply with the authority’s 
Code of Conduct. 
 
Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have 
in place “arrangements” under which allegations that a member or co-opted 
member of the authority or of a parish council within the authority’s area or of 
a Committee or Sub-Committee of the authority, has failed to comply with that 
authority’s Code of Conduct can be investigated and decisions made on such 
allegations.  
 
Such arrangements must provide for the authority to appoint at least one 
Independent Person, whose views must be sought by the authority before it 
takes a decision on an allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, 
and whose views can be sought by the authority at any other stage, or by a 
member or a member or co-opted member of a parish council against whom 
an allegation as been made. 
 

2 The Code of Conduct 
 
The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members, which is attached 
as Appendix 1 to these arrangements and available for inspection on the 
authority’s website and on request from Reception at the Borough Council’s 
Offices. 
 
Each parish council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish 
to inspect a Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, you should inspect any 
website operated by the parish council and request the parish clerk to allow 
you to inspect the parish council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

3 Making a complaint 
 
If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to – 

 
The Monitoring Officer 
Municipal Buildings 
West Street 
Boston  PE21 8QR 
E-mail: michelle.sacks@boston.gov.uk  

 

Page 57

mailto:michelle.sacks@boston.gov.uk


In order to ensure that we have all the information which we need to be able 
to process your complaint, please write to or e-mail the Monitoring Officer or 
complete and send us the model complaint form, which can be downloaded 
from the authority’s website and is available on request from Reception at the 
Borough Council Offices. 
 
Please do provide us with your name and a contact address or email address, 
so that we can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and keep you informed 
of its progress. If you want to keep your name and address confidential, 
please indicate this in the space provided on the complaint form, in which 
case we will not disclose your name and address to the member against 
whom you make the complaint, without your prior consent. The authority may 
investigate anonymous complaints, but will generally only do so where there 
is a clear public interest in doing so. 
 
The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 
working days of receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of 
your complaint. 
 

4 Will your complaint be investigated? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and, after 
consultation with the Independent Person, take a decision as to whether it 
merits formal investigation. This decision will normally be taken within 14 days 
of receipt of your complaint. Where the Monitoring Officer has taken a 
decision, he/she will inform you of his/her decision and the reasons for that 
decision. 
 
Where he/she requires additional information in order to come to a decision, 
he/she may come back to you for such information, and may request 
information from the member against whom your complaint is directed. Where 
your complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also 
inform the Parish Council or your complaint and seek the views of the Parish 
Council before deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation. 
 
In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint 
informally, without the need for a formal investigation. Such informal 
resolution may involve the member accepting that his/her conduct was 
unacceptable and offering an apology, or other remedial action by the 
authority. Where the member or the authority make a reasonable offer of local 
resolution, but you are not willing to accept that offer, the Monitoring Officer 
will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal 
investigation. 
  
If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by 
any person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and 
other regulatory agencies. 
 
 
 

Page 58



5 How is the investigation conducted? 
 
If the Monitoring Officer decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, 
he/she will investigate the complaint himself/herself or appoint an 
Investigating Officer.  The Investigating Officer will decide whether he/she 
needs to meet or speak to you to understand the nature of your complaint and 
so that you can explain your understanding of events and suggest what 
documents the Investigating Officer needs to see, and who the Investigating 
Officer needs to interview. 
 
The Investigating Officer would normally write to the member against whom 
you have complained and provide him/her with a copy of your complaint, and 
ask the member to provide his/her explanation of events, and to identify what 
documents he/she needs to see and who he needs to interview. In 
exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep your identity confidential or 
disclosure of details of the complaint to the member might prejudice the 
investigation, the Monitoring Officer can delete your name and address from 
the papers given to the member, or delay notifying the member until the 
investigation has progressed sufficiently. 
 
At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft 
report and will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to you and to the 
member concerned, to give you both an opportunity to identify any matter in 
that draft report which you disagree with or which you consider requires more 
consideration. 
 
Having received and taken account of any comments which you may make on 
the draft report, the Monitoring Officer will produce a final report if 
investigating the complaint himself/herself or the Investigating Officer will send 
his/her final report to the Monitoring Officer. 
 

6 What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is no 
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if 
he/she is satisfied that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient, he/she 
will write to you and to the member concerned and to the Parish Council, 
where your complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying you that he/she 
is satisfied that no further action is required, and give you both a copy of the 
Investigating Officer’s final report. If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that 
the investigation has been conducted properly, he/she may ask the 
Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report. 
 

7 What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is 
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and will 
then either send the matter for local hearing before the Hearings Panel or, 
after consulting the Independent Person, seek local resolution. 
 

Page 59



7.1 Local Resolution 
 

The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably be 
resolved without the need for a hearing. In such a case, he/she will consult 
with the Independent Person and with you as complainant and seek to agree 
what you consider to be a fair resolution which also helps to ensure higher 
standards of conduct for the future. Such resolution may include the member 
accepting that his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, 
and/or other remedial action by the authority. If the member complies with the 
suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will report the matter to the Audit 
& Governance Committee and the Parish Council for information, if 
applicable, but will take no further action. However, if you tell the Chief 
Executive that any suggested resolution would not be adequate, the he/she 
may (but is not required to) refer the matter for a local hearing. 

 
7.2 Local Hearing 

 
If the Monitoring Officer considers that local resolution is not appropriate, or 
the member concerned is not prepared to undertake any proposed remedial 
action, such as giving an apology, then the Monitoring Officer will report the 
Investigating Officer’s report to the Hearings Panel which will conduct a local 
hearing before deciding whether the member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of the 
member. 

 
Essentially, the Monitoring Officer will conduct a “pre-hearing process”, 
requiring the member to give his/her response to the Investigating Officer’s 
report, in order to identify what is likely to be agreed and what is likely to be in 
contention at the hearing, and the Chair of the Hearings Panel may issue 
directions as to the manner in which the hearing will be conducted. At the 
hearing, the Investigating Officer will present his/her report, call such 
witnesses as he/she considers necessary and make representations to 
substantiate his/her conclusion that the member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct. For this purpose, the Investigating Officer may ask you as 
the complainant to attend and give evidence to the Hearings Panel. The 
member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call 
witnesses and to make representations to the Hearings Panel as to why 
he/she considers that he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.  

 
If the Hearings Panel, with the benefit of any advice from the Independent 
Person, may conclude that the member did not fail to comply with the Code of 
Conduct, and so dismiss the complaint. If the Hearings Panel concludes that 
the member did fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform 
the member of this finding and the Hearings Panel will then consider what 
action, if any, the Hearings Panel should take as a result of the member’s 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. In doing this, the Hearings Panel 
will give the member an opportunity to make representations to the Panel and 
will consult the Independent Person, but will then decide what action, if any, to 
take in respect of the matter. 

 

Page 60



8 What action can the Hearings Panel take where a member has failed to 
comply with the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Council has delegated to the Hearings Panel such of its powers to take 
action in respect of individual members as may be necessary to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct. Accordingly the Hearings Panel may – 
 

8.1 Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct; 
 

8.2 Report its findings to Council or to the Parish Council for information; 
 

8.3 Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be removed 
from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 
 

8.4 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from 
the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 
 

8.5 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to or recommend that the Parish Council 
arrange training for the member; 
 

8.6 Remove, or recommend to the Parish Council that removes, the member from 
all outside appointments to which he/she has been appointed or nominated by 
the authority or by the Parish Council; 
 

8.7 Withdraw, or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws, facilities 
provided to the member by the Council, such as a computer, website and/or 
email and Internet access; or 
 

8.8 Exclude, or recommend that the Parish Council exclude, the member from the 
Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as 
necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings. 

 
The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to 
withdraw members’ or special responsibility allowances. 
 

9 What happens at the end of the hearing? 
 
At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Hearings 
Panel as to whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct 
and as to any actions which the Hearings Panel resolves to take. 
 
As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Monitoring Officer will 
prepare a formal decision notice in consultation with the Chair of the Hearings 
Panel, and send a copy to you, to the member ,and to the Parish Council, 
make that decision notice available for public inspection and report the 
decision to the next convenient meeting of the Audit & Governance 
Committee. 
 

 

Page 61



10 Who are the Hearings Panel? 
 
The Hearings Panel is Sub-Committee of the Council’s Audit & Governance 
Committee. The Council has decided that it will comprise a minimum of three 
and a maximum of five members, including not more than one member of the 
authority’s Cabinet and comprising members drawn from at least 2 different 
political parties. Subject to those requirements, it is appointed on the 
nomination of party group leaders in proportion to the strengths of each party 
group on the Council.  
 
The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings 
Panel and his or her views are sought and taken into consideration before the 
Hearings Panel takes any decision on whether the member’s conduct 
constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of conduct and as to any action 
to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
 
 

11 Who is the Independent Person? 
 
The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following 
advertisement of a vacancy for the post, and is the appointed by a positive 
vote from a majority of all the members of Council. 
 
A person cannot be “independent” if he/she – 
 

11.1 Is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or  
officer of the authority; 

 
11.2 Is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or officer 

of a parish council within the authority’s area, or 
 

11.3 Is a relative or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.1 or 11.2 above. 
For this purpose, “relative” means – 

 
11.3.1 Spouse or civil partner; 

 
11.3.2 Living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they were 

civil partners; 
 

11.3.3 Grandparent of the other person; 
 

11.3.4 A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person; 
 

11.3.5 A parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs 11.3.1 or 
11.3.2; 

 
11.3.6 A spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 

11.3.4 or 11.3.5; or 
 

Page 62



11.3.7 Living with a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or 11.3.5 as 
husband and wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 
12 Revision of these arrangements 

 
The Chair of the Hearings Panel has the right to depart from the Hearing 
Panel procedure, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, at any hearing 
where he/she considers that it is expedient to do so in order to secure the 
effective and fair consideration of any matter. 
 

13 Appeals 
 
There is no right of appeal for you as complainant or for the member against a 
decision of the Monitoring Officer or of the Hearings Panel 
 
If you feel that the authority has failed to deal with your complaint properly, 
you may make a complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman.  

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B (1) 

Proposed Terms of Reference for a Standards Sub-Committee 

of the Audit and Governance Committee  

 
1. Composition  
 
1.1 The sub-committee consists of five Members of Boston Borough Council 

drawn from the membership of the Audit and Governance Committee, two 
Independent Persons, and two Parish Councillors and a Parish Clerk from the 
parishes within the Borough area.   The Independent Persons and Parish 
representatives will be appointed by full Council and will not have voting 
rights. 

 
1.2 Only one Boston Borough Council Member shall be a Member of its Cabinet 

and the Leader of the Council shall not be that Member and that Member shall 
serve ex officio (non voting).  

 
2. Role and Functions of the Sub-Committee  
 

 To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and co-
opted members.  

 

 To monitor the operation of and compliance with the Local Codes of 
Conduct/Protocols. 

 

 All matters arising from or relating to the Local Codes of Conduct/Protocols. 
 

 Advising the Audit and Governance Committee and Council on the 
adoption or revision of a local Code of Conduct. 

 

 To consider and determine allegations and make arrangements under 
which allegations about Members’ conduct can be investigated.  

 

 To make arrangements under which decisions on allegations about 
Members’ conduct can be made under Section 28(6) of the Localism Act 
2011. 

 

 To advise on or arrange for the training of Members and/or co-opted 
members of the Council on matters relating to the Code of Conduct. 

 

 The monitoring of and issues relating to the declarations of interests and 
offer/receipt of gifts and hospitality by Members.  

 

 Issues arising from breaches of confidentiality and the disclosure of exempt 
information by Members.  

 

Page 65



 Any matter raised by the Appointed Auditor in relation to matters within the 
remit of the Committee. 

 

 To receive reports on Member dispensations granted by the Monitoring 
Officer 

 

 The sub-Committee will also act as the Standards Committee in relation to 
the Parish Councils wholly in its area and the Members of those Parish 
Councils.  

 
3. Role and Functions of the Assessment Panel and Hearings Panel 
 

An Assessment Panel has been established with the following function:-  
 

 To receive and determine whether complaints about Councillor’s conduct 
should be investigated or other action taken. 

 
A Hearings Panel has been established with the following function:- 

 

 To determine complaints referred for investigation where it is 
recommended by the Monitoring Officer that a breach of the Code of 
Conduct has been established or where the Standards Sub-Committee 
considers that a breach of the Code of Conduct has been disclosed.  

 
4. Composition of the Assessment Panel and Hearing Panel  
 

The Assessment Panel and Hearings Panel will be drawn from the 
membership of the Standards Sub-Committee to be selected on a meeting by 
meeting basis.  The Assessment Panel shall comprise of three Members of 
the Council drawn from different political groups, where practicable.  Where 
the complaint involves a Parish Councillor, a parish representative will serve 
on the Assessment Panel with two Boston Borough Council elected Members, 
drawn from different political groups, where practicable.  The Hearings Panel 
shall comprise of three Members of the Council serving on the Standards Sub 
Committee drawn from at least two different political groups, where 
practicable, one Independent Person and one Parish representative. 

 
5. Quorum  
 

The quorum for the Standards sub-committee shall be three Members of 
Boston Borough Council and one Independent Member.   

 
 

Page 66



Appendix B (2) 
 

Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under 
the Localism Act 2011 

 
1. Context 

 

1.1 These “Arrangements” set out how complaints may be made that an elected 
or co-opted member of Boston Borough Council or of a parish council within 
the Borough area has failed to comply with the authority’s Code of Conduct, 
and sets out how the authority will deal with allegations of a failure to comply 
with the authority’s Code of Conduct. 
 

1.2 Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have 
in place “arrangements” under which allegations that a member or co-opted 
member of the authority or of a parish council within the authority’s area or of 
a Committee or Sub-Committee of the authority, has failed to comply with that 
authority’s Code of Conduct can be investigated and decisions made on such 
allegations.  
 

1.3 Such arrangements must provide for the authority to appoint at least one 
Independent Person, whose views must be sought by the authority before it 
takes a decision on an allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, 
and whose views can be sought by the authority at any other stage, or by a 
member or a member or co-opted member of a parish council against whom 
an allegation has been made. 
 

2. The Code of Conduct 
 

2.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members, which is attached 
as Appendix 1 to these arrangements and available for inspection on the 
authority’s website and on request from Reception at the Borough Council’s 
Offices. 
 

2.2 Each parish council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish 
to inspect a Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, you should inspect any 
website operated by the parish council and request the parish clerk to allow 
you to inspect the parish council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

3. Making a complaint 
 

3.1 If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to – 
 
The Monitoring Officer 
Municipal Buildings 
West Street 
Boston  PE21 8QR 
E-mail: feedback@boston.gov.uk  

 

Page 67

mailto:feedback@boston.gov.uk


3.2 In order to ensure that we have all the information which we need to be able 
to process your complaint, please write to or e-mail the Monitoring Officer or 
complete and send us the model complaint form, which can be downloaded 
from the authority’s website and is available on request from Reception at the 
Borough Council Offices. 
 

3.3 Please provide us with your name and a contact address or email address, so 
that we can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and keep you informed of 
its progress. If you want to keep your name and address confidential, please 
indicate this in the space provided on the complaint form, in which case we 
will not disclose your name and address to the member against whom you 
make the complaint, without your prior consent. The authority may investigate 
anonymous complaints, but will generally only do so where there is a clear 
public interest in doing so. 
 

3.4 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 
working days of receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of 
your complaint. 
 

3.5 A complaint can only be considered if it concerns the conduct of a Member.  
Complaints about members of staff (including parish clerks) and decisions 
taken by the Council or a parish council cannot be considered.  
 

3.6 For a matter to be considered by the Sub-Committee it must fall within the 
authority’s legal jurisdiction.  Therefore, if any of the following are clear from 
the complaint the allegation will not be put before the Assessment Panel for 
consideration:-  
 

 Where it is clear from the complaint that the Member the subject of the 
complaint was not acting in an official capacity at the time the alleged 
conduct occurred. 

 

 Where the conduct complained of is a continuation of a situation/set of 
circumstances relating to the same Council, which the Assessment Panel 
has previously considered and determined not to take any action on. 

 

 Where the individual the subject of the complaint is not a Member at the 
time the complaint is submitted.  

 

 The Monitoring Officer is given delegated authority by the Council to 
consider the age and seriousness of the complaint in determining whether 
it should be submitted to the Assessment Panel. 

 
3.7 On receiving the complaint the Monitoring Officer will contact the Member 

complained of (Subject Member) to seek their views on the circumstances 
surrounding the allegation.  

 
3.8 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent Person, within 20 

working days shall determine if the complaint potentially constitutes a breach 

Page 68



of the Code of Conduct taking into account legislation, professional 
knowledge and case law.   

 
3.9 If the allegation is found to be a potential breach of the Code it will be referred 

to the Assessment Panel for consideration of whether it warrants investigation 
or other action.  

 
4 Standards Sub-Committee Assessment Panel  

 

4.1 Arrangements will be made to convene a Standards Sub-Committee 
Assessment Panel for consideration of the complaint within 30 working days 
of receiving it, or as soon as practicable to convene it.  
 

4.2 The Assessment Panel will comprise of three Boston Borough Council elected 
Members of the Council’s Standards Sub Committee, drawn from at least two 
different political groups, where practicable, and not from the Group of the 
subject member. Where the complaint involves a Parish Councillor, a parish 
representative will serve on the Assessment Panel, but not from the parish of 
the subject member, with two Boston Borough Council elected Members of 
the Council’s Standards Sub Committee, drawn from different political groups, 
where practicable. The appointment of a Chairman of the Panel will be the 
first item of business at each meeting.  

 
4.3 The Independent Person will be invited to attend all meetings of the 

Assessment Panel and their views will be sought and taken into consideration 
before the Assessment Panel takes any decision on whether a complaint 
should be investigated.  If the Independent Person is unable to attend in 
person they may submit their views in writing.  
 

4.4 The Monitoring Officer will circulate with the agenda papers for the meeting a 
pre-assessment report for each complaint received, which will contain a brief 
overview of the complaint, including further information submitted/obtained to 
assist the Panel with its decision (relevant minutes, register of interests etc.), 
relevant paragraphs of the Code of Conduct and a recommendation. 
 

4.5 For a matter to be considered by the Panel it must fall within the Authority’s 
legal jurisdiction.  Therefore, the pre-assessment report will also confirm:-  
 

 That the person the subject of the complaint was a Member of Boston 
Borough Council or a parish council within the Boston Borough Council 
area at the time the alleged conduct occurred. 

 

 That a Code of Conduct was in operation at the time the alleged 
conduct took place.  

 
4.6 If any of these questions are answered in the negative the complaint cannot 

be investigated as a breach of the Code and will not be put before the 
Assessment Panel for consideration. 
 
 

Page 69



 
 
 

5. Assessment Panel – Possible Decisions  
 

5.1 The Panel, being satisfied that the Authority has the legal jurisdiction to 
consider the complaint, will then use the agreed assessment criteria to reach 
a decision on the action, if any to be taken. 
 

5.2 The Panel must also be satisfied that the conduct complained of, if proven, 
could amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct.  Again, if this is not the 
case, the complaint cannot be investigated.  
 

5.3 The Assessment Panel can make the following decisions:-  
 

 That the matter be referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.  

 That the matter be referred to the Monitoring Officer for ‘other 
action’/local resolution. 

 That no further action be taken, either because:-  
 No breach of the Code of Conduct has been evidenced, or  
 It is felt, based on the information submitted, that investigation of 

the complaint would not be merited. 
 
NB: There is no right of appeal to the decision that no further action be taken 
on the complaint. 
 

5.4 The decision of the Panel will be sent to the complainant, the subject Member 
and the clerk to the appropriate parish council, in the form of a decision 
notice, within five working days of the Panel Hearing. 
 

6. Other Action / Local Resolution 
 

6.1 The Assessment Panel may consider that the matter can reasonably be 
resolved without the need for a hearing. In such a case, the Panel may 
request the Monitoring Officer to take other action or seek a local resolution.   

 
6.2 Examples of other action/local resolution will include:-  
 

 Advising the subject Member/Council concerned to undertake training 

 Advising the subject Member and complainant to engage in a process of 
conciliation 

 Advising the subject Member to accept that their conduct was 
unacceptable and to offer an apology 

 Instituting changes to procedures of the Council if they have given rise to 
the complaint. 

 
6.3 If the subject Member complies with the suggested resolution, the Monitoring 

Officer will report the matter to the Standards Sub Committee and the Parish 
Council for information, if applicable, but will take no further action.  
 

Page 70



6.4 If the subject Member is not willing to comply with the suggested resolution, 
the complaint will be referred back to the Assessment Panel for a decision as 
to whether or not the complaint should be investigated. 
 
 

7. Referral for investigation 
 

7.1 If the Assessment Panel decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, 
the Monitoring Officer will investigate the complaint or appoint an Investigating 
Officer who will contact the parties concerned.   
 

7.2 The Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer will seek to complete the 
investigation within three months of the complaint being referred by the 
Assessment Panel.  

 
7.3 At the end of his/her investigation, the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer 

will produce a draft report and will send copies of that draft report, in 
confidence, to the complainant and to the member concerned, to give both an 
opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report which they disagree with 
or consider requires more consideration. If the investigation has been 
conducted externally the Investigating Officer will in the first instance send 
their report to the Monitoring Officer for comments, prior to wider circulation.   
 

7.4 Having received and taken account of any comments which the complainant 
and the Member subject of the complaint may make on the draft report, the 
Monitoring Officer will produce a final report if investigating the complaint 
himself/herself or the Investigating Officer will send his/her final report to the 
Monitoring Officer. 

 
7.5 The Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer can make one of two findings, 

namely:- 
 

 That no breach of the Code of Conduct has been found / no further 
action to be taken 

 That the conduct complained of potentially breaches the Code of 
Conduct. 

 
7.6 Where it is concluded that no breach of the Code of Conduct has been found 

or that no further action should be taken the matter ends.  
 

7.7 Where the Investigating Officer concludes that the conduct complained of 
potentially breaches the Code of Conduct a Hearings Panel will be convened 
within three months of completion of the investigation.   

 
8. Local Hearing 

 
8.1 If the Assessment Panel considers that local resolution is not appropriate, or 

the member concerned is not prepared to undertake any proposed remedial 
action, such as giving an apology, then the Monitoring Officer’s/Investigation 
Officer’s report will be referred to the Hearings Panel which will conduct a 

Page 71



local hearing before deciding whether the member has failed to comply with 
the Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of the 
member. 

 
9. Procedure to be followed at a Local Hearing  
 
 Convening the Meeting and Access to Papers  
 
9.1 The Hearing Panel shall be convened in accordance with the Council’s 

access to Information Rules with the agenda and accompanying documents 
published five clear working days in advance of the meeting.  Schedule 12A 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) will be applied to exclude the 
public and press from the meetings of the Hearings Panel and to prevent the 
recording of the proceedings where it is likely that confidential or exempt 
information will be disclosed.  

 
 Attendance  
 
9.2 The Panel will comprise of five members- three Boston Borough Councillors 

(from at least two political groups from the membership of the Standards Sub-
Committee, where practicable), one parish council representative and one 
Independent Person, to be selected on a meeting by meeting basis. The 
quorum for the meeting is three councillors.  Once the meeting has begun all 
members must remain throughout the Hearing and during any deliberations.  

 
9.3 The Subject Member will be expected to attend the Hearing.  If they fail to 

attend and where the Panel is not satisfied with any explanation for their 
absence, they may have regard to any written representations submitted by 
the Subject Member and may resolve to proceed with the hearing in the 
Subject Member’s absence and make a determination.  If satisfied with the 
Subject Member’s reasons for not attending, the Panel may adjourn the 
hearing to another date.  The Panel may resolve in exceptional 
circumstances, that it will proceed with the hearing on the grounds that it is in 
the public interest to hear the allegations expeditiously. 

 
9.4 The Subject Member may choose to be accompanied by a legal 

representative or other person (such as a friend or colleague).  This person 
must not be directly involved in any of the allegations being considered by the 
Panel.  The participation of the Subject Member’s representative will be 
allowed. 

 
9.5 The Monitoring Officer, Investigating Officer and other legal advisor as 

nominated by the Monitoring Officer may also be present, as well as a Clerk. 
 
9.6 The complainant may also be present.  
 
 Conduct of the Hearing  
 
9.7 Subject to paragraph 9.28, the Hearing Panel will consider the following items 

of business:-  

Page 72



 

 Election of Chairman; 

 Declarations of Interest; 

 In the absence of the Subject Member, consideration of whether or not to 
proceed with the Hearing; 

 To decide on whether to exclude the public and the application of the 
public interest test; 

 The complaint 

 Advisory Notice (if applicable) 
 

Dealing with the Complaint 
 
 Investigating Officer  
  
9.8 The Investigating Officer will present their report, including any documentary 

evidence or other material.  They may also provide witness statements.  No 
new points shall be introduced unless agreed by the Panel and the other 
parties.  There is a requirement for the Investigating Officer to attend the 
hearing and present their report.  Since the report will have been circulated to 
the Panel and to the Subject Member in advance of the hearing, the 
Investigating Officer’s presentation should briefly summarise the report and 
other material, amend errors, provide updates and clarify the written report.  

 
9.9 After the Investigating Officer has presented the report and after any 

witnesses have given their evidence, the Subject Member or their 
representative may question the Investigating Officer about any matter in the 
Investigating Officer’s report or witness statement.  

 
9.10 After the Investigating Officer has presented the report and after any 

witnesses have given their evidence, members of the Hearings Panel may 
ask questions of the Investigating Officer and any witnesses whose 
statements have been provided by the Investigating Officer. 

 
Subject Member  

 
9.11 The Subject Member or their representative (the latter only with the 

agreement of the Chairman) may then present their case and call witnesses.  
They should provide a written summary of their case no less than five clear 
working days in advance of the hearing.  No new points should be introduced 
unless agreed by the Panel and the other parties. 

 
9.12 The Investigating Officer may question the Subject Member and any 

witnesses called by the Investigating Officer. 
 
9.13 Members of the Hearings Panel may ask questions of the Subject Member 

and any witnesses called by the Subject Member.  
 
 Summing Up 
 
9.14 The Investigating Officer will sum up the complaint 

Page 73



 
9.15 The Independent Person will be invited to express their views 
 
9.16 The Subject Member or their representative will be given the final word. 
 
 Deliberations  
 
9.17 The Panel, when deliberating on the complaint, will adjourn the Hearing to 

consider the matter in private.  They will consider whether or not, on the facts 
presented to the Panel, the Subject Member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct and they will also consider a provisional view on appropriate 
Advisory Notices.  

 
9.18 Only the Monitoring Officer (or their nominee) and Clerk will remain with the 

Panel to offer legal and procedural advice if needed. If the Monitoring Officer 
is also the Investigating Officer their nominee will act as advisor to the Panel.  

 
9.19 The Panel may reconvene at any time to seek additional information from the 

Investigating Officer, Subject Member or witnesses.  The Panel will then 
adjourn to continue their deliberations.  

 
9.20 The Panel will reach decisions on the findings of fact based on the balance of 

probabilities.  
 
 Announcing the Decision on the findings of fact on the basis of probability  
 
9.21  The Panel will reconvene the hearing in public and the Chairman will 

announce whether or not on the facts found, the Panel considers that there 
has been a breach of the Code of Conduct and their provisional view on 
issuing of Advisory Notices. 

 
9.22 If the Panel has found that there has been a breach, the Independent Person 

and the Subject Member will be invited to make representations about the 
Advisory Notice which the Panel is minded to impose.  

 
9.23 If representations about the Advisory Notice are made, the Panel will then 

adjourn to consider the Advisory Notice.  Only the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominee) and the Clerk will remain with the Panel to offer legal or procedural 
advice if needed.  When deciding whether to apply one or more Advisory 
Notices, the Panel will ensure that the application of any Advisory Notice is 
reasonable and proportionate to the Subject Member’s behaviour. 

 
9.24 Having taken into account the representations of the Independent Person and 

the Subject Member on the application of sanctions, the Panel will reconvene 
the hearing in public and the Chairman will announce: 

 
 (i) the Advisory Notice (if any); 

(ii) the recommendations (if any) to be made to the Council, Parish 
Council if relevant or Monitoring Officer. 

  

Page 74



9.25 If the Hearings Panel conclude that the member did not fail to comply with the 
Code of Conduct, the complaint will be dismissed.  

 
 
 Publication and notification of the Hearing Panel’s decision and 

recommendations  
 
9.26 Within 20 working days of the announcement of the Panel’s decision the 

Monitoring Officer will provide a full written decision and the reasons for the 
decision, including any recommendations to: 

 
 (a) the Subject Member 
 (b) the Complainant 
 (c) the Chief Executive  
 
 and will publish details of the Hearing Panel’s decision, including Subject 

Member and a summary of the Panel’s decision and recommendations and 
reasons for the decision and recommendations on the Council’s website.  

 
9.27 The Monitoring Officer will report the Hearing Panel’s decision and 

recommendations to the next meeting of the Standards Sub-Committee for 
information.  

 
 Variations to the Procedures at the Hearing Panel 
 
9.28 The Chairman may exercise his/her discretion and amend the order of 

business, where he/she considers that it is expedient to do so in order to the 
secure the effective and fair consideration of any matter.  

 
 

10. Action the Hearings Panel may take where a member has failed to 
comply with the Code of Conduct 
 

10.1 The Council has delegated to the Hearings Panel such of its powers to take 
action in respect of individual members as may be necessary to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct. Accordingly the Hearings Panel may – 
 

 Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct; 
 

 Report its findings to Council or to the Parish Council for information; 
 

 Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be 
removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council 
with the exception of those they sit on by right i.e. full Council and Boston 
Town Area Committee; 

 

 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 

 

Page 75



 Instruct the Monitoring Officer, or recommend that the Parish Council, 
advises the member to seek and attend training; 

 

 Remove, or recommend to the Parish Council that it removes, the member 
from all outside appointments to which he/she has been appointed or 
nominated by the authority or by the Parish Council; 

 

 Withdraw, or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws, facilities 
provided to the member by the Council, such as a computer, website 
and/or email and Internet access; or 

 

 Exclude, or recommend that the Parish Council exclude, the member from 
the Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting 
rooms as necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee 
meetings. 

 
10.2 The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to 

withdraw members’ or special responsibility allowances. 
 
11. The Independent Person(s) 

 
11.1 The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following 

advertisement of a vacancy for the post, and is the appointed by a positive 
vote from a majority of all the members of Council. 
 

11.2 A person cannot be “independent” if he/she – 
 
(a) Is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or  

officer of the authority; 
 

(b) Is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or 
officer of a parish council within the authority’s area, or 
 

(c) Is a relative or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.2(a) or 
11.2 (b) above. For this purpose, “relative” means – 
 
(i)  Spouse or civil partner; 

 
(ii) Living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they 

were civil partners; 
 

(iii)  Grandparent of the other person; 
 

(iv)  A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person; 
 

(v) A parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs (i) and 
(ii) above; 

 
(vi) A spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs (iii), (iv), 

and (v) above; or 

Page 76



 
(vii) Living with a person within paragraphs (iii), (v) and (v) above as 

husband and wife or as if they were civil partners. 
 
12. Appeals 

 
12.1 There is no right of appeal for the complainant or for the member against a 

decision of the Assessment Panel or of the Hearings Panel 
 

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Boston 
Borough 
Council  

Combined Assurance Status Report 

February 2019 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

  

 

 

 

 

P
age 80



  Combined Assurance Status Report                                                                                                                             
 

 

 

Introduction      1 

Key Messages      3 

Critical Systems     4 

Projects       6 

Partnerships      7 

Risks       8 

 

 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire for this review are: 

John Scott 

Audit Manager (Head of Internal Audit) 

John.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 

Paul Berry 

Principal Auditor 

Paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 81



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

1 
 

Introduction 

This is the seventh combined assurance report for the 

Council.  

By grouping the different sources of assurance in a single 
model we provide the basis for Senior Management and the 
Audit & Governance Committee to gain a better understanding 
of their organisations assurance status and needs.  
 
We do this by coordinating assurance arrangements – 
providing some structure – this is the Assurance Map.  
 
We have well established Assurance Maps that help us to 
focus our work plans on the make or break risks that affect the 
successful delivery of services and strategic objectives. The 
Map also recognises the importance of critical business 
systems that support successful delivery and ‘protect the 
business’ – the due diligence activities.  
 
The Map gives an overview of assurance provided across the 
whole organisation – not just those from Internal Audit – 
making it possible to identify where assurances are present, 
their source, and where there are potential assurance 
‘unknowns or gaps’. 
  
The Map is an invaluable tool for senior managers, providing a 

snapshot of assurance at any point of time.  This report 

explores those assurances in more detail. 

 

 

We gathered and analysed assurance information in a control 

environment that: 

 takes what we have been told on trust, and 

 encourages accountability with those responsible for 
managing the service.   

 

Scope 

We gathered information on: 

 Critical systems – those areas identified by senior 

management as having a significant impact on the 

successful delivery of our priorities or whose failure could 

result in significant damage to our reputation, financial loss 

or impact on people.   

 Due diligence activities – those that support the running 

of the Council and ensure compliance with policies. 

 Key risks – found on our strategic risk register, 

operational risk registers or associated with major new 

business strategy / change. 

 Key projects –supporting corporate priorities / activities. 

 Key partnerships  – partnerships that play a key role in 

successful delivery of services  

 

 

P
age 82



  Combined Assurance Status Report                                                                                                                             
 

2 
 

Methodology 

To ensure our combined assurance model shows assurances 

across the entire Council, not just those from Internal Audit, 

we leverage assurance information from your ‘business as 

usual’ operations.  Using the ‘3 lines of assurance’ concept:      

 

Our approach includes a critical review or assessment on the 

level of confidence the Council can have on its service 

delivery arrangements, management of risks, operation of 

controls and performance. 

 

We did this by: 

 Speaking to senior and operational managers who have 
the day to day responsibility for managing and controlling 
their service activities. 
 

 Working with corporate functions and using other third 
party inspections to provide information on performance, 
successful delivery and organisational learning. 
 

 Using the outcome of Internal Audit work to provide 
independent insight and assurance opinions.  

 

 Considering other information and business intelligence 
that feed into and has potential to impact on assurance. 

 
We used a Red (low), Amber (medium) and Green (high) 
rating to help us assess the level of assurance confidence in 
place. 

 

The overall assurance opinion is based on the assessment 
and judgement of senior management.  Internal audit has 
helped co-ordinate these and provided some challenge but as 
accountability rests with the Senior Manager we used their 
overall assurance opinion. 
 

• Accountable for DeliveryManagement

• External Inspections  & 
Internal Assurance 

Functions

Corporate and 
Third Party

• Independent AssuranceInternal Audit

P
age 83



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

3 
 

Key Messages 

This year we identified 85 critical systems, 43 projects and 15 
strategic risks.  
 
Out of the total of 143 areas reviewed 130 (91%) have Green 
assurance, 12 (8%) have Amber assurance, and 1 (1%) has 
Red assurance.  
 
This is a small improvement on last year (89% Green, 10% 
Amber and 1% Red). 
 
Assurance was obtained from management, corporate & 3rd 
Party and Internal Audit. 

 

 

 

Suggested next steps…… 

The combined assurance results continue to be very 
encouraging, and demonstrate that the Council is maintaining 
the improvements made in recent years. Internal Audit work is 
focused to ensure that areas of concern are considered for 
independent assurance through the Audit Plan. 
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
The Council will continue to focus on the governance 
arrangements and delivery of key transformation projects and 
areas requiring improvement, often in partnership with other 
bodies, to ensure that service quality, performance, cost and 
of course the internal control environment allow them to be 
managed efficiently and effectively.

Red Amber Green

1%

8%

91%

Overall Assurance Status 2018/19

Red Amber Green

1%

10%

89%

Overall Assurance Status 2017/18

P
age 84



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

4 
 

 

Critical Systems 

85 critical systems were identified and of these management 

considered 77 (91%) to be Green and 8 (9%) to be Amber. 

Internal Audit provided assurance on 47 areas (55%). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Amber assurance areas are; 

 Markets (previously Green) – income levels are lower than 

expected. Nationally it is a declining activity.  

 Housing advice, waiting list & homelessness (no change) – 

uncertainty over IT requirements due to changes with 

Lincolnshire Housing Partnership 

 Private Sector Housing (no change) – vacancies have 

affected capacity to deal with a significant increase in 

licensing activity 

 CCTV (no change) – ELDC technical upgrades are still not 

complete 

 

0% 9%

91%

Red

Amber

Green

Management

Corporate & 3rd Party

Internal Audit

100%

35%

55%

Who Provides Your Assurance

P
age 85



  Combined Assurance Status Report                                                                                                                             
 

5 
 

 

 Bereavement services (previously Green) – cremator 

maintenance.  Despite any issues, the service has 

continued to be delivered safely. 

 MTFS / efficiency savings (no change) - 2018/19 targets 

have been achieved but there are uncertainties in the 

medium term 

 Transformation Programme (no change) –see MTFS 

comments 

 ICT (no change) –there are still some areas to complete 

including a new access authorisation system and PSN 

(public services network) compliance assessment 

 
 

 

P
age 86



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

6 
 

 

Projects 

 
 

Overall Comments 

All projects are contained within the Council’s Transformation 

Programme. 

Projects are aligned under specific themes; 

 Asset Management (5 projects) 

 Partnerships (5 projects) 

 

 

 Service modernisation (7 projects) 

 Income generation (4 projects) 

 Boost the economy & job creation (2 projects) 

There is also a schedule of Legacy and new projects (20 

projects). 

Management consider that all themes and projects are Green.  

Management have advised that the Transformation 

Programme will need to be refreshed when the new Council is 

elected, to help meet the financial challenges of the coming 

years. 

 

Management of Risk 

The Transformation Programme is an Amber risk on the 

Strategic Risk Register and is being managed in accordance 

with the Council’s Risk Management Framework. 

Risks relating to specific projects are managed formally 

through exception reporting to the Transformation Board. 

 

  

P
age 87



  Combined Assurance Status Report                                                                                                                             
 

7 
 

 

Partnerships 

The Council has merged the partnership information into the 

contract register for completeness so that all contractual 

arrangements are monitored in the same way, mainly in 

recognition of the new data protection regulations in 2018 

(Data Protection Act 2018 and GDPR). 

Any contract or partnership issues are exception reported as 

part of the quarterly risk report to CMT, Cabinet and Audit 

Committee. 

 

 

P
age 88



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

8 
 

 

Risks 

Strategic Risks 

The Council has 15 Strategic Risks – 2 are scored Red and 

13 are scored Amber. 

The Red risks are; 

The Amber risks are; 

 CP1 – Prosperity; 

 Flooding 

 Growth & local economy 

 Local Plan 

 

 CP2 – People; 

 Welfare  

 Health 

 

 

 

 CP3 – Place; 

 Town centre 

 

 CP4 – Public Service; 

 Population change 

 Capacity 

 Transformation Programme 

 Brexit 

 

 Other 

 Civil Contingency 

 Compliance 

 Reputation 

All risks have a management assurance; 10 are Green, 4 are 

Amber and 1 is Red (Housing – due to the ability to impact on 

the pace of development being outside of the Council’s direct 

control). 

CMT have reviewed the Strategic Risks during 2018/19. 

All risks are being actively managed in accordance with the 

Risk Management Framework and are reported quarterly to 

CMT, Performance Clinic, Scrutiny, Cabinet and Audit & 

Governance committees. 

 

Housing (CP2 People)  

Budget (CP4 Public Service) 

P
age 89



  Combined Assurance Status Report                                                                                                                             
 

9 
 

 

Operational Risks 

There are currently 8 operational risks with a Red risk score; 

 Loss / theft / corruption of data - Loss of data leading to 

potential service failure to customers and external 

reputational damage; potentially requiring reporting to 

the Information Commissioner; potential for fines and 

incurring costs to rectify; 

 Financial settlement - risk of adverse financial 

settlement and lack of understanding of new 

arrangements 

 Financial markets - the ongoing uncertainty in the 

financial markets threaten the security of Council 

investments 

 Pension Fund – risk of the pension fund deficit 

worsening 

 Bad debts – risk of additional bad debts 

 Legislative changes – the impact of welfare reform 

legislation on the housing and benefit services 

 Business rates – the level of business rates may 

decline and reduce funding, also that future localisation 

and 2017 revaluation exercise may impact adversely  

 Cremator maintenance and repair – contractual 

relationship with the maintenance provider is 

deteriorating due to lack of confidence in their capability  

 

 

 

to fix problems and in the long term reliability of the 

cremators and associated systems  

All risks are being actively managed in accordance with the 

Risk Management Framework and are reported by exception 

to CMT, Performance Clinic, Scrutiny, Cabinet and Audit & 

Governance committees. 

The information risk register is currently being reviewed as 

part of service planning for 2019/20. There are no high risks 

identified to date. 

 

Fraud Risks 

There is currently 1 fraud risk area with a Red risk score; 

 Council Tax, Housing Benefit, Business Rates fraud – 

risk of false statement or lack of notification of changes; 

transient nature of our population, seasonal working 

All risks are being actively managed in accordance with the 

Risk Management Framework and are reported by exception 

to CMT, Performance Clinic, Scrutiny, Cabinet and Audit & 

Governance committees. 

P
age 90



Combined Assurance Status Report                                                 
 

10 
 

 

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic  

Operational 
Risk 

Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Head of Place & Space 

Geoff Moulder Leisure 
Centre  

G G 
 

   G SAME     

Sport and Play team G      G SAME     

Princess Royal Sports 
Arena (building leased to 
an independent charity) 

G     G G SAME    

Car Parking  G G   G G SAME     

Markets A AMBER 
Red triangle 

Income 

   A WORSE Income lower than 
expected 

  

Arts, Heritage & Tourism G      G SAME     

Town Centre / Events 
Management 

G    G G SAME   AMBER  

Boston Town Area 
Committee 

G    G NEW    

Partnerships & 
Sustainability  

G       G SAME   AMBER  

Strategic Asset 
Management 

G   G G SAME    

Land & property  G G   G G SAME    

P
age 93



 
 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk 

Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Head of Regulatory Services 

Affordable homes G G  G G SAME  AMBER  

Housing advice, waiting list 
& homelessness 

AMBER      AMBER SAME Uncertainty over IT 
requirements due to 
changes with Lincs 
Housing 
Partnership 

  

Private sector housing AMBER AMBER 
Red triangle 

Improved 
Housing 

Standards 

  AMBER SAME Vacancies have 
affected capacity to 
deal with significant 
increase in licensing 
activity  

  

Safeguarding G  G  G SAME     

CCTV  AMBER    G AMBER SAME ELDC installation 
not yet complete 

  

Community Development & 
Cohesion 

G   G G SAME    

Corporate Enforcement G    G NEW    

Community safety G G    G G SAME    

Emergency Planning G     G G SAME  AMBER  

Business Continuity G    G G SAME    

Environmental Health (food 
& pollution) 

 G G G  G SAME 

 

  

Housing Growth G    G SAME  AMBER  

P
age 94



 
 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Building Control Service G G    G SAME    

Licensing G G    G G SAME    

Local land charges G G    G SAME    

Head of Environmental Operations 

Cleaning and caretaking  G      G SAME     

Public conveniences G     G G SAME     

Refuse collection & 
recycling 

G AMBER 
Red triangle 

on household 
waste levels 
& recycling 

  G G BETTER    

Trade Waste G    G BETTER    

Green waste G    G G SAME     

Street cleansing  G    G G SAME     

Fleet management G  G G  G G BETTER   AMBER 

Parks and grounds 
maintenance 

G       G SAME     

Bereavement Services AMBER G   G A WORSE Cremator 
maintenance 

Operational  

Environmental Enforcement G   G  G G SAME    

P
age 95



 
 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Head of Corporate Services 

Transformation Programme AMBER    G AMBER SAME Future uncertainty. AMBER  

Partnership governance G     G SAME     

Consultation G      G SAME     

Communications G      G SAME   AMBER  

Risk Management G     G G SAME     

Training and Development G     G SAME     

Health and Safety G G    G SAME     

Recruitment (incl DBS 
checks) 

G     G G SAME   AMBER AMBER 

Payroll G    G G SAME 

 

 AMBER 

HR Policy / advice G G   G G SAME   AMBER AMBER 

Corporate Governance  G  G G G SAME     

Equality & Diversity G       G SAME     

P
age 96



 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Project / Programme / 
Contract Management  

G    G G BETTER   AMBER 

Performance management 
framework  

G    G G SAME    

Complaints G      G SAME    

ICT AMBER   G AMBER SAME Significant 
improvements  - 
some areas to 
develop 

Operational AMBER 

Customer Services G AMBER 
Red triangle 
switchboard 
waiting time 

  G G SAME     

Corporate Director   

Economic Development  
 

G G   G G SAME   AMBER  

Managed Workspace & 
Industrial Estates 

G      G SAME    

Local Plan (Joint Strategic 
Planning) 

G      G SAME Local Plan adopted 
on 8 March 2019. 

GREEN  

Development Management 
(incl enforcement) 

G G    G G SAME    

Legal services (Legal 
Lincolnshire) 

G      G SAME     

Member support G      G SAME     

Committee Services G      G SAME     

Electoral Registration G    G G SAME    AMBER 

P
age 97



 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Elections G    G G SAME    AMBER 

Culture, Values, Ethics G    G NEW    

Scrutiny function G    G NEW    

FOI / SAR enquiries G  G     G SAME     

Information Management G   G G SAME Good progress 
Operational risk 
reducing from Red 
to Amber 

Operational  AMBER 

Transparency G   G G SAME    

Boston Barrier G    G New  AMBER  

Chief Financial Officer 

Corporate / Counter Fraud G     G G SAME     

Council Tax G G   G G SAME   RED 

Housing Benefit & Council 
Tax Support 

G G AMBER G G SAME   AMBER RED 
Operational 

NNDR (incl Business Rates 
Assurance) 

G AMBER 
Red triangle 

collection 

  G G SAME    RED 

Bank & Electronic Income G     G G SAME    AMBER 

PCIDSS AMBER   AMBER AMBER SAME Partial non-
compliance. 

  

Treasury management G    G G SAME   Operational  

P
age 98



 
Critical Service Activity 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Performance 
Assurance  
at Dec 2018 

 
Third Party 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Internal 
Audit 

Assurance 

 
Overall 

assurance 
Feb 2019 

 
Direction 
 of Travel 

 
Management 

Comments for 
Red & Amber 

 
Strategic / 

Operational 
Risk Register 

 
Fraud 
Risk 

Register 

Debtors G    G G SAME   Operational AMBER 

Creditors G    G G SAME    AMBER 

Accountancy / General 
ledger  

G  G  G G SAME    AMBER 

VAT / Tax G   G   G SAME     

Insurance G    G G SAME    AMBER 

Capital accounting, strategy 
and programme 

G      G SAME    AMBER 

MTFS / Efficiency Targets 
&  Savings  

AMBER  G  AMBER SAME Future uncertainty RED  

Grants to External Bodies G       G SAME     

Financial regulations & 
management 

G     G SAME     

Internal Audit G  G  G SAME     

Procurement G     G G SAME    AMBER 

P
age 99



 
 
Strategic Risks 

  
Director 

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2018 

  
Management Comments for Red & Amber 

CP1 Prosperity - Flood risk M.Sacks A  This remains amber until the Local Plan process is complete (now adopted 
8th March) and the flood barrier is in place (in progress). 

CP1 Prosperity - Growth and local economy M.Sacks G   

CP1 Prosperity - Local Plan M.Sacks A This is amber due to the delay in the process (outside of the Council’s direct 
control). 

CP2 People - Housing A.Fisher  R This is red as the ability to impact on the pace of development is outside of 
the Council’s direct control and the impact is high. The Council will continue 
to endeavour to support progress wherever possible. 

CP2 People - Welfare P.Julian  G  

CP2 People - Health P.Perry  G  

CP3 Place - Town centre P.Perry  G   

CP4 Public Service - Population change A.Fisher  G   

CP4 Public Service - Budget P.Julian  A This is amber as the likelihood is outside of the Council’s direct control and 
the impact is high. However, appropriate controls and monitoring are in 
place. 

CP4 Public Service - Capacity K.Nundy  G   

CP4 Public Service - Transformation Programme P.Julian  A This is amber to reflect the work currently underway to plan future years 

CP4 Public Service - Brexit P.Julian  G  

Civil Contingency A.Fisher  G   

Compliance  M.Sacks G  

Reputation K.Nundy G  

P
age 100



 
Transformation Strands & Projects  
(with progress at Jan 2019) 
  

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 
Management Comments for Red & Amber 

Asset Management; 
 Footway Lighting / Grounds Maintenance (Completed) 
 Capital Financing (Completed) 
 Asset Returns (In progress) 
 Insurance Reserve (Completed) 
 Public Conveniences (Completed) 

G    

Partnerships; 
 Leisure, culture & heritage (In progress) 
 CCTV (Completed) 
 Voluntary sector (Completed) 
 Street scene & working with other councils (In progress) 
 Drainage Board liaison (In progress) 

G   

Service Modernisation; 
 Workforce Strategy & Resources Restructure (Completed) 
 Housing Services Review (In progress) 
 Planning Policy (Completed) 
 Regulatory Services (Completed) 
 Election costs (Completed) 
 Civic review (Completed) 
 Enhancing enforcement (Completed) 

G  

Income Generation; 
 General review (Completed) 
 Car Parking (Completed) 
 Markets (Completed) 
 Property Funds (Completed) 

G  

Boost the economy & job creation; 
 Business Rates growth (In progress) 
 Economic Development (In progress) 

G  

P
age 101



 
Legacy & New Projects 
(with progress at Jan 2019) 
  

 
Management 
Assurance 
Jan 2019 

 

 
Management Comments for Red & Amber 

 Carbon management & climate change (Completed) 
 Boston Explore & Discover (Completed) 
 Townscape Heritage Initiative (In progress) 
 Ingelow Avenue (Completed) 
 Pilgrim 2020 (In progress) 
 Car park machines (Completed) 
 GMLC bookings IT system (Completed) 
 May Fair (Completed) 
 Garden Waste electronic payments (Completed) 
 Development Management review (Completed) 
 Commercial projects (Completed) 
 Parish Councils (In progress) 
 Local Plan adopted on 8 March 2019. 
 Paperless efinancials system (In progress) 
 Universal support delivered locally (In progress) 
 Commercial waste (Completed) 
 Digital Group (In progress) 
 E-billing (Completed) 
 Housing Services (In progress) 
 Capital projects for 18/19 (In progress) 

 

G 
 

 

 
 

P
age 102



 

 

  
For all your assurance needs 

 

 
Boston Borough Council   
 
Progress Report – March 2019   
 
                      
 

 

                                                               

Page 103

Agenda Item 6



 
Contents            Para  

 
 

Introduction          1    
 

Key Messages                   1 
 

Internal Audit work completed January – March    1 
 

Other Significant Work        3 
 

Audits in Progress         4 
 

Audit Recommendations        4  
 

Performance Information        5 
 

Other matters of interest        5 
 

Appendices 
Appendix 1  – Details of Limited or Low Assurance Reports    6 
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 2018/19   7 
Appendix 3  – Assurance Definitions      9  
Appendix 4  – Performance Details      10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Details: 
John Scott 
Audit Manager 

 

 
For all your assurance needs 
City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln, LN1 1DD  
:  01522 873321    john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 104

mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk


Introduction   
 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Advise of progress made with the Audit Plan  

 Provide details of the audit work undertaken since the last progress report.   

 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 
respect of previously issued reports  

 Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit & Governance 
Committee role  

 

 
Key Messages   

 
 

2. The 2018/19 audit plan is progressing well and is on track - at the end of February 
90% of the Plan has been completed. 
 
Three audits have been completed since the previous Progress Report and the 
remaining five audits are all in progress and will be substantially completed by the 
end of March. 
 

  
Internal Audit work completed January - March   
 

 
3. The following final reports have been issued since the last progress report;  

 

High 
Assurance 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Low 
Assurance 
 

Consultancy 

None Town Centre – Events 
 
Economic 
Development 
 
Business Continuity & 
Emergency Planning 
 

None None None 

 
Note: The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the assurance 
expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of 
the agreed management action plan. Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 3.   

 
Below are summaries of the audit reports issued; 
 
 

Page 105



Town Centre Events – Substantial Assurance 
 

The Council’s Strategic Plan identifies a key priority to achieve prosperity, and to 
help deliver this it identifies aims & priorities of developing Boston as a tourist 
destination and securing funding to develop tourism, heritage and cultural 
opportunities. The Council has identified that town centre and surrounding area 
events support tourism and the visitor economy making delivery of effective events 
important to promote the Borough. 
 
Part of the role of the Town Centre Services team is to facilitate and organise events. 
Boston Town Area Committee fund events and the team seeks external funding 
through sponsorship and advertising. 
 
Our review gives Substantial assurance that controls are in place, and operating as 
expected, to deliver an effective event programme. We found that; 

 

 The Council’s events team have been successful in increasing the number 

and type of events as part of the 2018/19 programme. This leads to wider 

benefits for the town, increasing visitor numbers, which in turn supports 

business. 

 Work to encourage sponsorship and advertising is also taking place, which 

should generate increased income to run the events programme. 

 The team have received positive feedback on event delivery from visitors and 

the wider benefits for the town are emerging. 

 The increase in the number of events provided has resulted in resource 

pressure on the small event team. This is being reviewed by the Head of 

Place & Space as part of delivering the 2019/20 event programme. 

 Individual events well managed through comprehensive event plans. 

 
To strengthen the processes we have recommended the following; 

 

 Developing and approving an Event fees policy which covers the different 

charges in use and meets the aims of the wider Council Corporate Charging 

Policy 

 Reviewing income processing arrangements to ensure that VAT is correctly 

accounted for on all ticket sales 

 

 

Economic Development – Substantial Assurance 
 

The Council’s top priority is “to secure the long term economic viability of the 
borough”. This is recognised in the Council’s Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20 which contains 
four priorities; the first of which is “Prosperity – we need a strong economy which is 
growing which will generate more and better job opportunities and will attract people 
and businesses to the area”. 
 
The purpose of our review is to give assurance on the work that is being done to 
develop and grow the economy. 

Page 106



 
Our review gives Substantial assurance that controls are in place, and operating as 
expected, to deliver and manage the work that is being done to develop and grow 
the economy. Our recommendations are included below and these have been 
agreed with management.  
 
The Council has a flexible-fluid Economic Development Action Plan rather than a 
formal-fixed ED Strategy. It is aligned to, and informed by, local, regional and 
national strategies. A new Local Plan is to be adopted shortly and this will further 
inform ED work. 
 
Senior management and Members are very happy with the work being done and the 
progress being made. A presentation by the ED Manager to the Environment & 
Performance committee in January 2019 contained a selection of data (from the 
Office of National Statistics) which showed the positive work that is being done. 
 
The ED Action Plan was produced in 2017 and is a strategic document. Although it 
has been received by Environment and Performance committee it has not been 
formally approved by Cabinet. It is recommended that Cabinet are part of the 
approval process when the ED Action Plan is next refreshed. 
 
The Action Plan has high level objectives and each contains a number of project 
themes / outcomes. Progress updates take the form of a narrative commentary but 
there is no process or framework to allow progress to be easily measured or 
assessed. It is recommended that a framework for assessing ED work is introduced 
which has specific activities, actions, milestones or outcomes.  
 
At times funding is approved by CMT to deliver specific projects. Some will have very 
tangible outcomes which can be easily assessed whilst for others it may be much 
more difficult to monitor success. There are no formal ways to measure the progress 
and outcomes for these projects. It is recommended that project and success 
milestones are developed as part of the ‘business case’ approval process and 
periodically monitored. 
 
ED work is primarily delivered by the ED Manager but it also involves the Leader, 
Chief Executive, Corporate Director and other teams in the Council under a one-
team approach. 
 
The ED Manager has access to support staff and is working closely with the Growth 
Manager to provide some resilience. Going forward resource could become a 
challenge as expectations and work increases further. 
 
The Council has established good links and communication channels with the key 
stakeholders. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



Business Continuity & Emergency Planning – Substantial Assurance 
 
Local Authorities have certain responsibilities and powers in relation to major civil 
emergencies, accidents and hazards under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. Boston 
Borough Council as a category 1 responder has certain statutory responsibilities and 
powers. In Lincolnshire, a multi-agency body is established to co-ordinate 
emergency management. This County’s group is known as the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum, of which Boston Borough Council is a part. 
 
Local authorities must have adequate measures in place to maintain essential 
services and subsequently recover from the effects of significant disruption to normal 
working. This process of increasing the organisation’s resilience is known as 
Business Continuity Management (BCM).  
 
Our review on business continuity and emergency planning provides a substantial 
level of assurance on service delivery arrangements, management of risk and 
operation of controls. 
 
We identified several areas of good practice including policies, plans, training, 
experienced personnel and professional support from Lincolnshire County Council 
(LCC). 
  
The Council has accepted a small number of risks; 
 

 A formal rota / on call system is not in place at BBC for Emergency Planning / 
Corporate Business Continuity Planning officers (LCC advised that not all 
District Council’s operate one) however officers feel that there is adequate 
cover and CMT have signed off this decision.  

 Other areas relate to access to a satellite phone and MTPAS – Mobile 

networks privileged access scheme which is used but not fully.   

A number of areas are already in development currently and planned for in 2019/20 
such as introducing an additional continuity plan for planning / development control 
and a full review of the business continuity plans and the emergency plan as well as 
more general awareness training. 
 
We found some areas which could potentially be improved and actions have been 
agreed with management to address these; 
 

 There are a small number of service areas without nominated deputies and 
these will be reviewed 

 A more detailed media action plan will be considered.  

 Prioritisation will be applied to critical services (High priority) 

 Plans will consider arrangements for no available ICT for up to two weeks 
(there is a separate IT DR plan) 

 The business continuity review group will meet more regularly and CMT will 
take over this role.  

 Officers will engage with West Street tenants to provide guidance in respect of 
their EP /BCP plans in place. 

Page 108



 Further discussion with neighbouring councils around possible 
accommodation requirements will take place  

 The short, medium and long term requirements for staffing and 
accommodation requirements will be based on the updated priorities. 

 Undertaking an exercise where the Council’s main offices are lost (or not 
available for example through fire ) for some time 

 Completing checks with managers to ensure they have a hard copy of their 
respective plans at home and work. 

 
 

Other Significant Work  
 

 
4. Combined Assurance Map refresh 

 
This work has been completed and considered by CMT. It is attached as a separate 
report. 

 
 
Audit Plan 2019/20 
 
No changes were suggested to the Draft 2019/20 Audit Plan presented in January 
and so it is not being presented again. 
 
 

Audits in Progress  
 

 
5. The following audits are in progress; 

 

 IT Infrastructure follow up 

 Migration Fund 

 Complaints 

 ICT Digitalisation strategy & use of new websites 

 Governance / Risk / Fraud 
 

 
Audit Recommendations  

 
 

6. There is a formal process for tracking Internal Audit recommendations; they are 
recorded on the Council’s performance system and progress updates are provided 
by management each quarter. We periodically liaise with the Transformation & 
Governance Manager to obtain status reports. 

 
We undertake formal follow up on all High priority recommendations and on all 
recommendations where the overall audit assurance is Limited or Low; evidence of 
implementation is requested and examined. 
 

Page 109



 
An update was provided to the January meeting so there is no update this time. The 
next update will be as part of the Annual Internal Audit Report, which will be 
presented to the next meeting.  
 

 
Performance Information  

 
 

7. Our performance is measured against a range of indicators, and is shown at 
Appendix 4.  
 
 

Other matters of interest 
 
 

8. Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors Audit and Risk Awards 2018  
 

These awards recognise innovation and excellence in Internal Audit. Assurance 
Lincolnshire were finalists in two categories - we received Highly Commended 
awards in both for; 

 

 Innovation in training and development – for our work with Universities and 
Apprenticeships  

 Outstanding Team Public Sector – for our work on governance – Culture and 
Ethics  

 
  

Page 110



Appendix 1 – Details of Low or Limited Assurance Reports  
 
 

There are none. 
 

  

Page 111



Appendix 2 – 2018/19 Audit Plan Schedule 
 

Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Annual Report Production of 2017/18 
Annual Report 

Q1 April 18 May 18 Complete 
A&G May 18 

Elections & 
Electoral 
Registration 

Maintaining the electoral 
register and the 
operation of elections. 

Q1 April 18 June 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Payroll  Key controls Q1 May 18 July 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Operation of the 
partnerships. 

Q2 Aug 18 Oct 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Car Parking (NEW) Income controls and 
VFM opportunities 

Q2 Jul 18 Jan 19 Completed 

Affordable Housing Work to increase the 
supply and range of 
affordable and flexible 
housing products. 

Q2-3 Oct 18 Jan 19 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Council Tax  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Housing Benefit  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
Substantial 
assurance 

NNDR  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Town Centre – 
Events 

Event management Q2-3 Oct 18 Jan 19 Completed – 
Substantial 
assurance 

Business Continuity 
& Emergency 
Planning 

Resilience plans in the 
event of loss of key 
buildings and / or ICT. 

Q3 Oct 18 Mar 19 Completed – 
Substantial 
assurance 

ICT  Infrastructure follow up Q3 Nov 18  In progress – 
draft report 
stage 

Economic 
Development 

Work being done to 
grow the economy. 

Q3 Dec 18 Mar 19 Completed – 
Substantial 
assurance 

Combined 
Assurance 

Production of 2018/19 
Assurance Map & report 

Q3-4 Dec 18 Mar 19 Completed 
A&G Mar 19 

IA Strategy & new 
Audit Plan 

Production of 2019/20 
audit plan 

Q3-4 Dec 18 Mar 19 Completed 
A&G Jan & 
Mar 19 

Page 112



Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Migration Fund  Processes to deliver and 
record key output 
measures. 

Q4 Jan 19  In progress 

ICT  Digitalisation strategy & 
new websites 

Q4 Jan 19  In progress 

Governance-Risk-
Fraud 

High level assessment 
for the annual audit 
opinion 

Q4 Mar 19  In progress 

Complaints (NEW) 
 

Complaint handling, 
monitoring, reporting 
and lessons learned 

Q4 Feb 19  In progress 

Boston Town Area 
Committee 

Governance and 
operational 
arrangements. 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Ethical Culture Assessment of the 
Council’s (officer) ethical 
framework 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Page 113



Appendix 3 - Assurance Definitions
1
 

 
High Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.   
 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  Controls 
have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Substantial 
Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage 
risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and 
operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.   
 
 
 
  

 
Limited Assurance  
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation 
of controls and / or performance. 
 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or are 
inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable 
level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is 
unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives. 
 

Low Assurance 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
high. 
 

 
 
 

                                                 
1
 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters identified 

in the audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our attention 
during the audit.  Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not 
exist.  

Page 114



Appendix 4 - Performance Details 2018/19 Planned Work 

 

  

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target 

Actual  
 

Percentage of plan 
completed. 
 

100%  
 

100% end Mar 
 

90% at end of February 

Percentage of key financial 
systems completed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(Three key control audits 
have been completed) 
 

Percentage of 
recommendations agreed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(23 out of 23) 

Percentage of 
recommendations due 
implemented. 
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

50%  
(3 out of 6) 
 
NB – as there is no Rec update this 
information has not been updated – 
it is from the previous report 

   

Timescales: 
Draft report issued within 10 
working days of completing 
audit.  
 
Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
 
Period taken to complete 
audit –within 2 months from 
fieldwork commencing to the 
issue of the draft report. 
 
NB – Not all completed work is 
included within the timescales, e.g. 
non assurance work / where no 
formal report is issued such as 
benefit subsidy; fraud work etc. 

 

  
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100%  
(9 out of 9) 
 
 
100%  
(8 out of 8) 
 
 
 
100%  
(9 out of 9) 
 

Client Feedback on Audit 
(average) 
 
NB – feedback is generally only 
obtained for formal assurance work 
although sometimes it may be 
obtained for other types of work. 

 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to excellent  
 
Average score 30.5 out of 32 
 
(7 issued & 6 returned) 
 

Page 115



 

Page 116



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019-20 
 

MEETING 
 

ITEMS 

22 MAY  
2019  

 Annual Audit Fee – External Auditor 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2017/18 – Credit Control Manager 

 Quarter 4 2017/18 Risk Report  – Transformation & Governance Manager   

 Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 – Chief Finance Officer   

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2017/18 – Chief Finance Officer   

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 – Chief Finance Officer  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18 – Internal Auditor  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor 

22 JULY  
2019 

 Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2017/18 –           
External Auditor 

 Financial Report 2017/18 – Chief Finance Officer   

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 1 2018/19 – Chief Finance 
Officer 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor 

16 SEPT  
2019 

 Quarter 1 Risk Report  – Transformation & Governance Manager 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor  

11 NOV  
2019 

 Annual Audit Letter 2018/19  – External Auditor 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report – Transformation & Governance Manager 

 Treasury Management – 2018/19 Mid-Year Update – Chief Finance 
Officer   

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor 

27 JAN  
2020 

 Certification of Grants and Returns – Annual Report 2017/18 – External 
Auditor  

 Technical Update, Incorporating the External Audit Progress Report – 
External Auditor 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 
– 2023/24 – Chief Finance Officer  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 3 2018/19 – Chief Finance 
Officer  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

23 MAR  
2020 

 External Audit Plan 2018/19 – External Auditor 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2018/19 – Transformation & Governance Manager  

 Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 – Chief Finance Officer 

 Accounting Policies – Chief Finance Officer  

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Plan  2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS - ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
	Public Sector Audit Appointments requires its external auditors to prepare an annual report on the claims and returns certified for each audited body. This letter is our annual report for the certification work we have undertaken for 2017/18.
	In 2017/18 we carried out certification work on only one claim or return, the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. The certified value of the claim was £17 million, and we completed our work and certified the claim on 27 November 2018.
	Matters arising
	Our certification work on Housing Subsidy Benefit claim included:
	Our certification work identified a number of errors in the original claim. Where the error can be quantified by testing 100% of the population of potentially affected cases the claim can be amended. Where the population is too large for 100% testing ...
	Amendments to claim
	The cells that were amended where the original claim had been revised and where testing of 100% the population was carried out were in respect of Non HRA Rent Rebates, Rent Allowances and Modified Schemes and Uncashed cheques. The overall impact to th...
	Qualification Letter
	We found a small number of errors in our Rent Allowances sample testing which we needed to report as the population were too large for 100% testing. They related to the following:
	- incorrect calculations of earnings; and
	- incorrect overpayment classification.
	Consequently we have made no recommendations to the Authority to improve its claims completion process. There were no recommendations made last year and there are no further matters to report to you regarding our certification work.
	Certification work fees
	Public Sector Audit Appointments set an indicative fee for our certification work in 2017/18 of £9,767. Our actual fee was higher than the indicative fee (£11,762) which will be subject to PSAA approval, and this compares to the 2016/17 fee for this c...
	Yours sincerely
	Andy Cardoza Engagement Lead

	2 QUARTER 3 RISK REPORT 2018/19
	Appendix A - Summary of strategic risks

	3 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19
	Appendix A - Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018-19

	4 REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE
	Appendix A - Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference comparison
	Appendix B - Proposed revised Terms of Reference (with annotations of changes to the current ToR)
	Appendix B (1) - Proposed Terms of Reference for a Standards Sub-Committee
	Appendix B (2) - Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under the Localism Act 2011

	5 COMBINED ASSURANCE - STATUS REPORT
	Assurance Map Summary 2019

	6 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/19
	7 WORK PROGRAMME



